BRISTOL REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

BRISTOL REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

BRISTOL REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| | Page |
|--|------|
| Independent Auditors' Report | 1 |
| Management Discussion and Analysis | 3 |
| FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | |
| Statement of Net Position | 13 |
| Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position | 15 |
| Statement of Cash Flows. | 16 |
| Notes to Financial Statements | 18 |
| SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION | |
| Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards | 45 |
| Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards | 46 |
| Statement of Certification of Modernization Costs | 47 |
| FINANCIAL COMPLIANCE REPORTS FOR FEDERAL FUNDS | |
| Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance | 48 |
| Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards | 50 |
| Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings | 52 |
| Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs | 53 |
| REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION | |
| Financial Data Schedule | 55 |
| Required Supplemental Information Related to Pensions | 62 |
| Required Supplementary Information Related to OPEB | 64 |
| Notes to Required Supplementary Information Related to Pensions and OPEB | 66 |



Dooley & Vicars Certified Public Accountants, L.L.P.

Daniel J. Dooley, C.P.A.

Michael H. Vicars, C.P.A.

1

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Commissioners
Bristol Redevelopment and Housing Authority
Bristol, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Bristol Redevelopment and Housing Authority as of March 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements, as listed in the Table of Contents. The prior year summarized comparative information has been derived from the Authority's March 31, 2019, financial statements. In our report dated December 20, 2019, we expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the Bristol Redevelopment and Housing Authority as of March 31, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 12, the Schedule of Net Pension Liability on page 62, the Schedule of Net OPEB Liability on page 64, the Schedule of Employer Contributions to the Virginia Retirement system Pension plan on page 63 and the Schedule of Employer Contributions to the OPEB plan on page 65, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements.

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, Financial Data Schedule, and other supplementary information are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated December 21, 2020, on our consideration of the Bristol Redevelopment and Housing Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering Bristol Redevelopment and Housing Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Dooley & Vicars

Certified Public Accountants, L.L.P.

Richmond, Virginia December 21, 2020

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS March 31, 2020

The Bristol Redevelopment & Housing Authority (hereafter the "Authority") presents its Annual Report for the year ended March 31, 2020, developed in compliance with Statement of Governmental Accounting Standard No. 34, entitled "Basic Financial Statements – and Management's Discussion and Analysis – For State and Local Governments" (hereafter "GASB 34"), and related standards. The Authority's management's discussion and analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the Authority's financial activity, (c) identify changes in the Authority's financial position, and (d) identify individual funds' issues or concerns.

The discussion and analysis of the Authority is intended to provide an overview of the Authority's financial activities for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020. Please read it in conjunction with the financial statements, notes and supplemental schedules that follow this section.

Principal Officials

Commissioners as of March 31, 2020

Jerry Chorosevic, Sr., Chairman

Josh Fleenor, Vice Chairman

Dr. Gary Poulton, Commissioner

Denise Franklin, Commissioner

Mark Cofer, Commissioner

Administrative Staff as of March 31, 2020

Lisa Porter, Executive Director/CEO

Diana Carter, VP Housing Operations

Todd Musick, VP Capital Investments

Ray Austin, VP Finance & Administration

Financial Highlights

- The Authority was awarded a new capital fund (CFP) grant from the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) of \$937,761. during fiscal year 2020. Total capital grant expenditures during the fiscal year were \$772,605.
- The Authority received HUD Public Housing operating subsidy in the amount of \$1,415,008 and funding for the Housing Choice Voucher Program in the amount of \$1,266,988.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS March 31, 2020

Overview of Annual Financial Statements

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to, and should be read in conjunction with, the basic audited financial statements and supplementary information. The MD&A represents management's examination and analysis of the Authority's financial condition and performance.

The financial statements report information about the Authority by using full accrual accounting methods as utilized by similar business activities in the private sector. In management's opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Authority in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

The Authority is engaged only in "Business-Type Activities" and is considered a "Special Purpose" government under Paragraph 138 of GASB 34. The Authority will present its financial statements according to Paragraph 138 of GASB 34 and those will consist of the following: (a) Statement of Net Position (Balance Sheet) (b) Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (Income Statement), and (c) Statement of Cash Flows. In addition to the basic financial statements, the Authority will present notes to the financial statements and required supplementary information.

The Statement of Net Position (Balance Sheet) presents information on all the Authority's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two being Net Position. Assets and liabilities are presented in order of liquidity and are classified as "Current" (convertible into cash within one year), and "Non-Current". Over time, increases and decreases in Net Position serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (Income Statement) presents the results of the business activities of the Authority over the course of the fiscal year. The focus of this statement is the "Change in Net Position", which is similar to Net Income or Net Loss. All changes in Net Position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from operating, financing, and investing activities. This statement presents cash receipts and cash disbursement information, without consideration of (a) the earnings event, (b) when an obligation arises, or (c) the depreciation of capital assets.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide required disclosures and other information that are essential to a full understanding of material data provided in the statements. The notes present information about the Authority's accounting policies, significant account balances and activities, material risks, obligations, commitments, contingencies and subsequent events, if any. Also included is the required Supplemental Information containing items such as budget to actual comparisons, debt information, and grant activity.

The financial statements were prepared by the Authority's staff from the detailed general ledgers and supporting documentation for each fund in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The financial statements were audited and adjusted, if material, during the independent external audit process.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS March 31, 2020

Summary of Organization and Business

The Authority is a public body and a body corporate and politic organized under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia by the City of Bristol for the purpose of providing adequate housing for qualified low-income individuals in accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed by the U. S Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The Authority is governed by a Board of Commissioners appointed by the City of Bristol which has governance responsibilities over all activities related to the Authority. The Authority's Board of Commissioners has full decision-making authority and the power to designate the management of the Authority. The Authority's Board elects its own chairperson. The City of Bristol has no influence over the management, budget, or policies of the Authority. The Authority is a legally separate entity that is fiscally independent of other governments. Therefore, the Authority reports independently and is not included in the City of Bristol's financial reports.

The Authority operates and manages several different programs and presents financial statements from an enterprise fund perspective. Many of the funds maintained by the Authority are required by the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and others are segregated to enhance accountability and control. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain Authority functions. Each fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The Authority's funds or programs are as follows:

- Business Activities Programs
- Capital Fund Grant Program
- Housing Choice Voucher Program
- Low Income Public Housing
- Resident Opportunities and Self Sufficiency Program
- Community Development Block Grant
- State Rental Assistance Program (SRAP) through the Virginia Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services (DBHDS).

The Business Activities Programs are non-federally aided programs administered by the Authority which also includes the development and management of the following:

- Component Unit Sapling Grove Apartments, LLC
- · Component Unit Village at Oakview, LLC

Financial Analysis

The following sections present the Authority's financial statements and management's analysis of the Authority's financial condition and activities for this fiscal year. This analysis should be considered in conjunction with the financial statements and notes to the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS March 31, 2020

Bristol Redevelopment & Housing Authority Combined Statement of Net Position TABLE I

| Account Descriptions | 2020 | 2019 | Total Change | % Change |
|----------------------------------|------------|------------|-----------------|-------------|
| Account Descriptions | 2020 | 2017 | Change | Change |
| Current Assets | 2,752,244 | 2,577,694 | 174,550 | 6.77% |
| Noncurrent Assets | 84,546 | 90,810 | (6,264) | -6.90% |
| Capital Assets | 14,158,455 | 14,074,709 | 83,746 | 0.60% |
| Deferred Outflow of Resources | 138,613 | 84,329 | 54,284 | 64.37% |
| Total Assets | 17,133,858 | 16,827,542 | 306,316 | 1.82% |
| Current Liabilities | 299,358 | 320,304 | (20,946) | -6.54% |
| Noncurrent Liabilities | 1,727,251 | 1,940,568 | (213,317) | 10.99% |
| Deferred Inflow of Resources | 126,579 | 194,281 | (67,702) | 34.85% |
| Total Liabilities | 2,153,188 | 2,455,153 | (301,965) | 12.30% |
| Investments in Capital Assets | 11,549,280 | 11,130,087 | 419,193 | 3.77% |
| Restricted Net Position | 482,426 | 466,612 | 15,814 | 3.39% |
| Unrestricted Net Position | 2,948,964 | 2,775,690 | 173,274 | 6.24% |
| Total Net Position | 14,980,670 | 14,372,389 | 608,281 | 4.23% |
| Total Liabilities & Net Position | 17,133,858 | 16,827,542 | 306,316 | 1.82% |

Major Factors Affecting the Combined Statement of Net Position (the Balance Sheet)

Current assets increased by \$174,550, mostly comprised of an increase in cash, with decreases in both current receivables and prepaid expenses.

Capital assets increased by \$83,746, which is the net of a \$772,752 increase offset by \$689,006 in net additional Accumulated Depreciation during the fiscal year.

Noncurrent liabilities decreased by \$213,317 due entirely to a decrease in Deferred Developer Fees payable.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS March 31, 2020

Deferred Inflow and Outflow of Resources were adjusted based on the Virginia Retirement System GASB 68 and GASB 75 reports for June 30, 2019 Measurement Date. The adjustments increased Deferred Outflow of Resources by \$54,284 while it decreased Deferred Inflow of Resources by \$67,702.

Total *Net Position* increased by \$608,281 due in part to the above factors indicated; it is comprised of these types:

- (a) *Unrestricted Net Position* funds which are not as restricted as the restricted net position category but remain subject to varying degrees of restrictions,
- (b) Restricted Net Position funds which are restricted by HUD or other outside controlling documents and/or entities for specific program and project needs and cannot be used for general Authority purposes,
- (c) Investment in Capital Asset funds which are investments in capital assets net of capital debt.

Unrestricted Net Position increased by \$173,274 due almost entirely to the increase in current assets.

Investments in Capital Assets increased by \$419,193 due mostly to construction in progress at Mosby Homes.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS March 31, 2020

Bristol Redevelopment & Housing Authority Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position TABLE II

| | | | Total | % |
|------------------------------|------------|------------|-------------|---------|
| Account Descriptions | 2020 | 2019 | Change | Change |
| Tenant Revenue | 1,296,225 | 1,207,270 | 88,955 | 7.37% |
| HUD Grant Funding | 3,259,659 | 2,892,047 | 367,612 | 12.71% |
| State Grant Funding | 79,311 | 76,023 | 3,288 | 4.33% |
| Interest Income | 5,988 | 5,508 | 480 | 8.71% |
| Other Income | 40,316 | 346,197 | 252,700 | -88.35% |
| Other income | 40,310 | 340,197 | (305,881) | -00.33% |
| Total Revenue | 4,681,499 | 4,527,045 | 154,454 | 3.41% |
| | | | | |
| Administration | 1,351,120 | 1,141,209 | 209,911 | 18.39% |
| Tenant Services | 191,127 | 186,529 | 4,598 | 2.47% |
| Utilities | 415,891 | 446,452 | (30,561) | -6.85% |
| Ordinary Maintenance | 920,707 | 838,507 | 82,200 | 9.80% |
| Protective Services | 9,550 | 6,599 | 2,951 | 44.72% |
| General Expenses | 388,850 | 310,283 | 78,567 | 25.32% |
| Housing Assistance Payments | 1,098,431 | 1,112,080 | (13,649) | -1.23% |
| Interest & Amortization | 20.025 | 20.200 | 646 | 2.200/ |
| | 28,935 | 28,289 | | 2.28% |
| Depreciation | 706,212 | 821,938 | (115,726) | -14.08% |
| Total Expenses | 5,110,823 | 4,891,886 | 218,937 | 4.48% |
| Net Surplus | (429,324) | (364,841) | (64,483) | n/a |
| Capital Additions | 772,605 | 160,986 | 611,619 | 379.92% |
| Consol / Prior Period Adj | 265,000 | 2,473,400 | (2,208,400) | n/a |
| Total Change in Net Position | 608,281 | 2,269,545 | (1,661,264) | n/a |
| Beginning Net Position | 14,372,389 | 12,102,844 | 2,269,545 | 18.75% |
| Ending Net Position | 14,980,670 | 14,372,389 | 608,281 | 4.23% |

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS March 31, 2020

Major Factors Affecting the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Total Revenues increased by \$154,454 or 3.41% from the prior year. Governmental grants and subsidy from HUD saw an increase of \$367,612 (see note below Table III). HUD funding for Public Housing Operating Subsidy, Housing Choice Vouchers and the ROSS program all decreased, but expenditures from Capital grants increased mostly due to construction at Mosby Homes, resulting in the overall increase in revenue. Table III gives a comparative year by year breakdown of the HUD grant programs. Other Income decreased by \$305,881 (mainly because of the final Village at Oakview Developer Fee revenue recorded in FY2019 in Business Activities).

Bristol Redevelopment & Housing Authority HUD Funding Comparative TABLE III

| Year | Public Housing | HCV | CFP | ROSS | CDBG | Totals |
|---------------|----------------|-----------|-----------|----------|---------|-----------|
| 2020 | 1,415,008 | 1,266,988 | 1,299,691 | 50,577 | 3,455 | 4,035,719 |
| 2019 | 1,490,968 | 1,278,325 | 160,986 | 122,754 | = | 3,053,033 |
| Net Change | (75,960) | (11,337) | 1,138,705 | (72,177) | 3,455 | 982,686 |
| % Change | -5.09% | -0.89% | 707.33% | -58.80% | 100.00% | 32,19% |

The HUD funding increase relates to an increase of funding for the Capital Fund Program ("CFP"). Because CFP funds are recognized as revenue and drawn down as expenditures are incurred, this increase in HUD revenue is a direct correlation of an increase in CFP expenditures during the year (mainly capitalized renovation of some Mosby Homes units).

Total Expenses increased by \$218,937 or 4.48 % over the previous year.

Administration expenses increased by \$209,911 or 18.39%, due mostly to increases in CFP soft costs.

Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) for the Housing Choice Voucher Program remained about the same, with a slight decrease of \$13,649 or 1.23 % from the prior year.

The Consolidation / Prior Period Adj to Net Position of \$265,000 represents the final additional capital contribution by the tax credit partner in the Village at Oakview component unit.

Capital additions increased by \$611,619 due to renovation of some Mosby Homes units.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS March 31, 2020

Capital Assets

At year end, the Authority had \$14.158 million in capital assets, which represented a 0.60% net increase (additions, reductions, and depreciation) from the \$14.075 million balance from the prior year.

During FY 2020, there were increases of \$772,605 in Construction in Progress for the renovation of several Mosby Homes units.

Total depreciation expense for the fiscal year was \$706,212.

The following table shows the comparative change in asset categories from 2019 to 2020.

Bristol Redevelopment & Housing Authority Combined Statement of Capital Assets TABLE IV

| | | | Total | % |
|-------------------------------------|--------------|--------------|-----------|------------|
| Account Descriptions | 2020 | 2019 | Change | Change |
| | | | | |
| Land | 962,573 | 962,573 | • | 0.00% |
| Buildings & Improvements | 37,485,880 | 37,485,880 | - | 0.00% |
| Equipment | 816,486 | 816,339 | 147 | 0.02% |
| Construction in Progress | 831,288 | 58,683 | 772,605 | _ 1316.57% |
| Subtotal | 40,096,227 | 39,323,475 | 772,752 | |
| Less Accumulated Depreciation | (25,937,772) | (25,248,766) | (689,006) | 2.73% |
| • | | | | |
| Total Capital Assets | 14,158,455 | 14,074,709 | 83,746 | 0.60% |

Current and Long-Term Debt Outstanding

The Authority's Current and Long-Term Debt at March 31, 2020 totaled \$1,157,381 as compared to \$1,187,347 at the end of the previous year, representing a decrease of \$29,941. This decrease was a direct result of principal reduction from monthly payments. The Authority utilizes operating debt for the purpose of funding short-term revitalization needs in surrounding neighborhoods.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS March 31, 2020

Table V is a summary of activity of all debt liabilities:

Bristol Redevelopment & Housing Authority Outstanding Debt Schedule TABLE V

| | | | Total | % |
|-----------------------------------|-----------|-----------|----------|--------|
| | 2020 | 2019 | Change | Change |
| Current Portion of Long-Term Debt | 30,726 | 29,975 | 751 | 2.51% |
| Long Term Debt, Net of Current | 1,126,655 | 1,157,347 | (30,692) | -2.65% |
| Totals | 1,157,381 | 1,187,322 | (29,941) | -2.52% |

Economic Factors and Events Affecting Operations

Several factors will affect the financial position of the authority in subsequent fiscal years. These factors include:

- (1) The COVID-19 pandemic, which began just before the end of FY2020, will have a dramatic and long-lasting effect on all aspects of BRHA's operations and financial performance in the coming few years. Lay-offs, furloughs and business closings will decrease tenant rent payments in FY2021, while increasing housing assistance payments for the Voucher programs. Participants under both programs pay rents based on a specific percentage of their adjusted incomes. Eviction moratoriums will impact rent collections. CARES Act funds provided under both Public Housing and Housing Choice Voucher programs should result in a revenue increase for Federal funds.
- (2) BRHA sustained a fire in one building at Rice Terrace in July 2020, which resulted in 9 units being offline for most of FY2021. While the approved vacancies for fire damaged units will not result in a reduction of Operating Subsidy for those 9 units, the tenant rental for 9 families might result in total rental revenues for the year showing a net decrease.
- (3) Based on recent HUD budgets, the Authority expects to see level funding related to all HUD funded programs and does not see any major changes to current funding formulas for the near future. BRHA does expect a small decrease in public housing operating subsidy each of the 2 years (see factor #4 below). The Authority is also considering future redevelopment of its public housing inventory utilizing the low-income housing tax credit program and/or the HUD Rental Assistance Demonstration program.
- (4) BRHA completed the Phase II demolition of the former Bonham Circle public housing site during FY2019. This resulted in the decommissioning of 26 public housing units from its inventory, which in turn will bring a partial loss of operating subsidy. The subsidy was not stopped abruptly but has been phased down over 36 months per HUD regulations.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS March 31, 2020

- (5) BHRA was awarded 30 Mainstream Vouchers (non-elderly disabled) which we began leasing in July 2020, and an additional 9 Mainstream Vouchers (from CARES Act funding) which we began leasing in October 2020. These new vouchers will increase both HAP revenues and HAP expenses (to the extent they can be leased prior to FYE2021). They should also increase admin revenues as fees are earned for units leased. COVID-19 has caused some complications in getting these new vouchers leased, so the full effect of this new program might not be reflected financially until FY2022.
- (6) BRHA anticipates that, by the end of FY2021, our Authority will be designated as a Moving-to-Work (MTW) agency by HUD. We have been asked to submit a non-competitive application to be part of Cohort 1 of the MTW expansion. Cohort 1 will demonstrate flexibility in funding between programs. If approved and designated, this will have a significant impact on future operations and financial presentation. Most importantly, this program will allow us to tailor some of our programs to better serve the needs of our clients and our community through the waivers and fungibility available within the MTW program. To learn more about the MTW program, please visit the HUD MTW website or our website at www.brha.com.

Financial Contact

Questions concerning any of the information presented in this Management's Discussion & Analysis or the audit portion should be addressed in writing to:

Lisa R. Porter, Executive Director / CEO
Bristol Redevelopment and Housing Authority
809 Edmond Street
Bristol, Virginia 24201

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

As of March 31, 2020 (With Comparative Amounts as of March 31, 2019)

| ASSETS | 2020 | 2019 |
|--|---------------|---------------|
| Current Assets | | |
| Cash and Cash Equivalents | \$ 1,904,753 | \$ 1,739,012 |
| Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents | 565,698 | 466,612 |
| Investments at Fair Value | 193,523 | 189,557 |
| Receivables, Net | 31,647 | 110,346 |
| Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets | 56,623 | 72,167 |
| Total current assets | 2,752,244 | 2,577,694 |
| Noncurrent Assets | | |
| Other Assets | 84,546 | 90,810 |
| Capital Assets, Net | 14,158,455 | 14,074,709 |
| Total Noncurrent Assets | 14,243,001 | 14,165,519 |
| Total Assets | 16,995,245 | 16,743,213 |
| Deferred Outflow of Resources | | |
| Deferred Outflow of Resources | 138,613 | 84,329 |
| Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources | \$ 17,133,858 | \$ 16,827,542 |

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

As of March 31, 2020

(With Comparative Amounts as of March 31, 2019)

| LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION | 2020 | 2019 |
|--|---------------|--|
| Current Liabilities | | |
| Accounts Payable | \$ 26,643 | \$ 29,199 |
| Accrued Expenses | 26,683 | 39,094 |
| Accrued Compensated Absences, Current | 49,165 | 36,861 |
| Intergovernmental Payable | 37,731 | 37,400 |
| Tenant Security Deposits | 84,827 | 84,576 |
| Deferred Revenue | 9,183 | 5,254 |
| Long Term Debt - Current Portion | 30,726 | 29,975 |
| Other Current Liabilities | 34,400 | 57,945 |
| Total Current Liabilities | 299,358 | 320,304 |
| Non-Current Liabilities | | |
| Accrued Compensated Absences, Non-Current | 98,369 | 103,950 |
| Long Term Debt, Net of Current Portion | 1,126,655 | 1,157,347 |
| Other Non-Current Liabilities | 99,000 | 326,000 |
| Net Pension and OPEB Liabilities | 403,227 | 353,271 |
| | | |
| Total Noncurrent Liabilities | 1,727,251 | 1,940,568 |
| Total Liabilities | 2,026,609 | 2,260,872 |
| Deferred Inflow of Resources | | |
| Deferred Inflow of Resources | 126,579 | 194,281 |
| Total Liabilities and Deferred Infow of Resources | 2,153,188 | 2,455,153 |
| | · | |
| NET POSITION | | |
| Net Investment in Capital Assets | 11,549,280 | 11,130,087 |
| Restricted Net Position | 482,426 | 466,612 |
| Unrestricted Net Position | 2,948,964 | 2,775,690 |
| Total Net Position | 14,980,670 | 14,372,389 |
| Total Liabilities, Deferred Infow of Resources, and | | |
| Net Position | \$ 17,133,858 | \$ 16,827,542 |
| MONOPOLIO DE LO PROMINSTA ADRIGAÇÃO DE PROMINSTA DE LA PROMINS | | The state of the s |

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION For the Year Ended March 31, 2020

(With Comparative Amounts for the Year Ended March 31, 2019)

| | (<u></u> | 2020 | - | 2019 |
|---|----------------|------------------------|----|------------------------------|
| Operating Revenues | 4 | | _ | |
| Rental Income | \$ | 1,296,225 | \$ | 1,207,270 |
| HUD Operating Grants | | 3,259,659 | | 2,892,047 |
| Other Government Grants | | 79,311 | | 76,023 |
| Fraud Recovery | | 7,769 | | |
| Other Revenue | 8 | 32,547 | | 346,251 |
| Total Operating Revenues | - | 4,675,511 | | 4,521,591 |
| Operating Expenses | | | | |
| Administrative | | 1,351,120 | | 1,141,209 |
| Tenant Services | | 191,127 | | 186,529 |
| Utilities | | 415,891 | | 446,452 |
| Maintenance | | 920,707 | | 838,507 |
| Protective Services | | 9,550 | | 6,599 |
| General Expenditures | | 388,850 | | 310,283 |
| Housing Assistance Payments | | 1,098,431 | | 1,112,080 |
| Depreciation | | 706,212 | | 821,938 |
| Total Operating Expenses | h | 5,081,888 | | 4,863,597 |
| Operating Income (Loss) | r _e | (406,377) | | (342,006) |
| | | | | |
| Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) | | 1 1220 123 223 227 227 | | 294777 S No 2004 (1970 (1970 |
| Interest Income, Unrestricted | | 5,988 | | 5,508 |
| Interest on Loans | | (28,935) | | (28,289) |
| Gain (Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets | | | | (54) |
| Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) | | (22,947) | | (22,835) |
| Income (Loss) Before Capital Grants | | (429,324) | | (364,841) |
| Capital Grants | | 772,605 | | 160,986 |
| Change in Net Position | | 343,281 | 10 | (203,855) |
| Capital Contributions (Consolidated Unit) | | 265,000 | | 2,473,400 |
| Total Beginning Net Position | | 14,372,389 | 2 | 12,102,844 |
| Total Ending Net Position | \$ | 14,980,670 | \$ | 14,372,389 |

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended March 31, 2020 (With Comparative Amounts for the Year Ended March 31, 2019)

| | £ | 2020 | ă. | 2019 |
|---|----------|-------------|----------|--------------------------|
| Cash Flows from Operating Activities: | bess | | 1000 | VIN GOVERNMENT PROPERTY. |
| Cash Received from Tenants | \$ | 1,386,873 | \$ | 1,323,237 |
| Other Revenue Receipts | | 32,547 | | 346,251 |
| HUD PHA Operating Grants | | 3,259,659 | | 2,892,047 |
| Other Government Grants | | 79,311 | | 76,023 |
| Housing Assistance Payments | | (1,098,431) | | (1,112,080) |
| Cash Paid for Operating Expenses | | (3,358,925) | | (3,180,710) |
| Net Cash Provided by/(Used) for Operating Activities | | 301,034 | | 344,768 |
| Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: | | | | |
| Capital Contributions (Component Unit) | | 265,000 | | 2,473,400 |
| Capital Grants - HUD | | 772,605 | | 160,986 |
| Principal and Interest Payments on Operating Debt | | (285,876) | | (1,784,586) |
| Net Cash Provided by/(Used) for Financing Activities | | 751,729 | | 849,800 |
| Cash Flows from Investing Activities: | | | | |
| Acquisition of Capital Assets | | (789,958) | | (902,914) |
| Purchase of Investments | | (3,966) | | (4,210) |
| Interest Income | | 5,988 | | 5,508 |
| Net Cash Provided by/(Used) for Investing Activities | | (787,936) | | (901,616) |
| Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents | | 264,827 | | 292,952 |
| Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year | | 2,205,624 | | 1,912,672 |
| Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year | <u> </u> | | \$ | 2,205,624 |
| Casil and Casil Equivalents at End of Year | <u> </u> | 2,470,451 | — | 2,203,024 |
| Reconciliation of Cash and Restricted Cash | | | | |
| Cash and Cash Equivalents | \$ | 1,904,753 | \$ | 1,739,012 |
| Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents | | 565,698 | | 466,612 |
| Total Cash and Cash Equivalents | \$ | 2,470,451 | \$ | 2,205,624 |

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended March 31, 2020

(With Comparative Amounts for the Year Ended March 31, 2019)

| | 2020 | 2019 |
|--|--|--|
| Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by/ (Used) for Operating Activities: | | |
| Operating Income (Loss) | \$ (406,377) | \$ (342,006) |
| Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by/(Used) for Operating Activities: | | |
| Depreciation Expense Changes in Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, and Deferred Inflows of Resources: | 706,212 | 821,938 |
| (Increase) Decrease in Receivables, Net (Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses (Increase) Decrease in Other Assets (Increase) Decrease in Deferred Outflow of Resources Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses | 78,699 15,544 6,264 (54,284) (2,556) (12,411) | 99,776 (12,205) (90,810) 34,680 (54,837) 37,740 |
| Increase (Decrease) in Intergovernmental Payable Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Compensated Absences Increase (Decrease) in Tenant Security Deposits Increase (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities Increase (Decrease) in Unearned Revenue | 331 6,723 251 (23,545) 3,929 | 4,368 15,582 13,720 (43,166) 2,471 |
| Increase (Decrease) in Orleaned Revenue Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Inflow of Resources Increase (Decrease) in Net Pension Liability Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities | \$ (67,702) 49,956 301,034 | \$ 131,506 (273,989) 344,768 |

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Organization - The Bristol Redevelopment and Housing Authority is a public body and a body corporate and politic created by the City of Bristol in 1937 under the authority of the General Statutes of the State of Virginia and the National Housing Act of 1937. The Authority was created for the purpose of providing safe and sanitary housing for the low-income citizens of Bristol. The Authority engages in the development, operation, and administration of a Low Rent Housing Program and other federally assisted programs.

The governing body of the Authority consists of a Chairperson and a Board of Commissioners, but the Authority designates its own management. The City of Bristol provides no financial support to the Authority and is not responsible for the debts or entitled to the surpluses of the Authority. The Authority has the power to approve its own budget and maintain its own accounting system. Although the Mayor of the City of Bristol appoints the governing board of the Authority, no other criteria established by NCGA Statement 3 (and adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board) for inclusion of the Authority in the financial reports of the City are met. Therefore, a separate financial report is prepared for the Authority according to GASB Statement 14. These financial statements do not reflect, nor are required to reflect, blended or discretely presented component unit activity.

B. Description of Programs - The Authority maintains its accounting records by program. A summary of the significant programs operated by the Authority is as follows:

Low-Rent Public Housing

The public housing program is the primary operating program of the BRHA and is designed to provide low-cost housing. BRHA is the owner of approximately 362 public housing units located throughout the City of Bristol. Under this program, HUD provides funding via an annual contributions contract. These funds, combined with the rental income received from tenants, are available solely to meet the operating expenses of the program.

Public Housing Capital Fund

Capital grants, funded by HUD, are used for new construction and to improve the physical condition, management, and operation of exiting public housing.

Housing Choice Vouchers (HCV)

The Authority administers the leasing of up to 303 units through the Housing Choice Voucher Program. This program establishes partnership between the Authority and private housing providers throughout the Authority's service area. The Authority earns administrative fees from HUD for facilitating and managing the public/private housing partnership.

Resident Opportunities and Self Sufficiency (ROSS)

ROSS grants are provided by HUD to be utilized for providing the residents of public housing with supportive services, resident empowerment activities, and assistance in becoming economically self-sufficient.

Business Activities

The Business Activities includes non-federal rental property and real estate, development and property management activity for the component units.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

State and Local

The State and Local program reflects funding received by the Virginia Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services to administer the State Rental Assistance Program. The program is designed to provide rental assistance and supportive services to individuals who meet the program eligibility criteria.

Component Units

To manage its business and financial affairs more effectively, the Authority has created an affiliate entity to support its various ventures. While the Authority, as the parent entity, manages federal, state and local programs, the affiliate entities support the various LIHTC developments.

- C. Reporting Entity In accordance with GASB 61, The Financial Reporting Entity Omnibus An Amendment of GASB No. 14 and No. 34 ("GASB 61"), the Authority's basic financial statements include those of the Authority and any component units. Component units are legally separate organizations whose majority of officials are appointed by the Authority or the organization is fiscally dependent on the Authority and there is a potential for those organizations either to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the Authority. An organization has a financial benefit or burden relationship with the Authority if any one of the following conditions exist:
 - the Authority is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organization's resources
 - the Authority is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization
 - the Authority is obligated in some manner for the debt of the organization

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the following component units are included in the Authority's reporting entity:

Sapling Grove Apartments LLC – This entity is a Virginia limited liability company formed in 2007 to construct and operate thirteen buildings in Bristol, Virginia. The buildings consist of 26 residential rental apartments, of which 10 are public housing units. As of December 31, 2019, the Company has three members – Virginia Affordable Housing Management Corporation owns .001% special member interest, SGA Management, LLC owns a .009% managing member interest, and the Housing Equity Fund of Virginia XI, LLC owns a 99.99% investor member interest. Profit, losses, tax credits, and cash disbursements are allocated among the members on their respective ownership interest.

Village at Oakview LLC – This entity is a Virginia limited liability company formed in 2016 to construct and operate twelve buildings of affordable housing in Bristol, Virginia. The buildings consist of 48 residential rental apartments, of which 16 are public housing units. As of December 31, 2019, the Company has three members –VAHM, LLC owns a .001% special member interest, Village Management, LLC owns a .009% managing member interest, and the Housing Equity Fund of Virginia XX, LLC owns a 99.99% investor member interest. Profit, losses, tax credits, and cash disbursements are allocated among the members based on their respective ownership interest.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Blended Presentation - In accordance with GASB 61, the Authority's financial statements are presented utilizing the blended method because the Authority's governing body and the Component Units' governing bodies are substantively the same; as such, a blended presentation of their financial statements is warranted.

D. Basis of Accounting - The Authority uses fund accounting to report on its financial position and results of its operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain Authority functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The Authority maintains Proprietary Fund types, the operations of which are accounted for in Enterprise Funds. These funds are established to account for operations similar to business enterprises where operations are primarily supported by user charges.

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to Government Units. The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The Authority has elected to apply all applicable GASB as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. Enterprise fund types use the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, the emphasis is on the measurement of net income similar to the approach used by commercial enterprises. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the statement of net assets. However, all inter-authority balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Authority adopted GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions ("GASB68"). GASB 68 established standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expenditures associated with pension plans of State and Local Governments. For defined benefit pensions, GASB 68 identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actual present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee service. In addition, GASB 68 details the recognition and disclosure requirements for employers with liabilities to a defined benefit pension plan and for employers whose employees are provided with defined contribution pensions.

The Authority adopted GASB 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions ("GASB 75"). This Statement is required for government agencies with fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2018 and has a similar reporting requirement for other postemployment benefits ("OPEB") as the GASB Statement 68 has for pension plans. Agencies are required to record OPEB liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, deferred outflows of resources and expenditures associated with OPEB plans of State and Local Governments in a similar fashion to the recognition of the net pension liability required by GASB Statement 68.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

- E. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments Highly liquid investments with initial maturities of three months or less from date of purchase are considered cash equivalents. It is the Authority's policy to maintain collateralization in accordance with HUD requirements. Restricted cash and cash equivalents consist of tenant security deposits and net assets restricted for housing assistance payments. Investments are stated at market value. Fluctuations in market value and gain or loss upon disposition of investments are recorded in investment income.
- F. Accounts Receivable, Net Rents are due from tenants on the first day of each month. As a result, tenants receivable balances primarily consist of rents past due and vacated tenants. The Authority recognizes a receivable from HUD and other governmental agencies for amounts billed, but not received and for amounts unbilled, but earned as of year-end.
- G. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts The Authority periodically reviews all accounts receivable to determine the amount, if any, that may be uncollectable. An allowance for doubtful accounts is established to provide for all accounts, which may not be collected in the future for any reason.
- H. Prepaid Expenses Amounts paid as of year-end that will benefit future operations. Prepaid expenses consist of prepayments for liability and property insurance coverage and cash surrender values of life insurance contracts.
- I. Capital Assets Land, buildings and equipment are capitalized at cost. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received. Costs determined to represent additions or betterments to existing structures which exceed the capitalization threshold of \$10,000 are capitalized. Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to expense as they are incurred. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

| Real Property and Improvements | 10 - 40 | years |
|--|---------|-------|
| Machinery and Equipment | 5 - 7 | |
| Office Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment | 5 - 7 | vears |

When assets are retired, demolished, or sold, their costs are removed from the accounts and the proceeds, if any, are reflected in revenues currently.

- J. Impairment of Capital Assets The Authority evaluates events or changes in circumstances affecting capital assets to determine whether impairment has occurred. If the Authority determines that a capital asset is impaired, and that impairment is significant and other-than-temporary, then an impairment loss will be recorded in the Authority's financial statements. There were no impairment losses recorded for the year ended March 31, 2020.
- K. Deferred Revenue The Authority's deferred revenue consists of tenant rent payments and HUD funding applicable to future periods.
- L. Income Taxes As a political subdivision of the State of Virginia, the Authority is exempt from real estate, sales and income taxes. The Authority makes payments in lieu of taxes (PILOT) in accordance with the provisions of its Cooperation Agreement with the City. Under the Cooperation Agreement, the Authority must pay the City the lesser of 10% of its net shelter rent or the approximate full amount of the real property taxes on Authority owned units.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

- M. Compensated Absences Full-time employees earn vacation and sick leave at a rate ranging from 12 to 18 days per year in accordance with the Authority's personnel policy. The maximum vacation and sick leave carryover, determined as of December 31 each year, shall be 36 days and 130 days, respectively. At termination, employees are paid for any accumulated vacation leave. Unused sick leave is paid at retirement, up to a maximum of \$2,500. The aggregate current and long-term liability recorded for accrued leave at March 31, 2020, was \$147,534.
- N. Interfund Activity Inter-program receivables/payables are the result of the use of the Public Housing Program as the common paymaster for shared costs of the Authority. Cash settlements are made periodically throughout the year, and all inter-program balances net to zero. Interprogram receivables and payables are eliminated for financial statement purposes in accordance with GASB 34.
- O. Use of Estimates The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosures of contingencies at the date of the financial statements, and revenues and expenses recognized during the reporting period. The most significant estimates relate to allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable, inventory obsolescence, the liability for post-employment benefits, and depreciation. Actual results could differ from those estimates. These estimates may be adjusted as more current information becomes available and any adjustment could be significant.
- P. Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources until that time. In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources until that time.
- Q. Net Position Equity is classified as net position and consists of the following components:
 - Net Investment in Capital Assets Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings attributable to the acquisition or construction of those assets.
 - Restricted Net Position Net position which has been restricted by either external
 groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, other governments or law through
 constitutional provisions or legislation. As of March 31, 2020, the Authority has \$565,698 in net
 position restricted for tenant security deposits, future housing assistance payments, and reserves
 and escrows of Component Units, either restricted by investors or held and administered by VHDA.
 - <u>Unrestricted Net Position</u> Represents net position that does not meet the definition of "restricted'
 or "invested in capital assets." The Authority's positive value of unrestricted net position may be
 used to meet ongoing obligations.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

- R. Pension Plans The Authority participates in a defined benefit pension plan administered by the Virginia Retirement System (VRS). For purposes of measuring net pension liability, deferred inflows/outflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of BRHA's retirement plan and the additions to/deductions from the plan's net fiduciary position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported by the Virginia Retirement System (VRS). For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
- S. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) The Authority participates in the Virginia Group Life Insurance Plan (GLI) Plan that is being maintained by Virginia Retirement System (VRS). For purposes of measuring the net Group Life Insurance Program OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the Group Life Insurance Program OPEB, and Group Life Insurance Program OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the VRS Group Life Insurance program OPEB and the additions to/deductions from the VRS Group Life Insurance Program OPEB's net fiduciary position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported by VRS. In addition, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

NOTE 2: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The Authority's cash and investments, both unrestricted and restricted, consists of checking, savings, super NOW accounts, and investments with Virginia Investment Pool (LGIP) held at financial institutions. Deposits at each financial institution are insured by the FDIC up to \$250,000 in addition to being collateralized by pledged securities. Funds are maintained in accordance with Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act, Section 2.2-4400 et. seq. of the Code of Virginia or covered by federal depository insurance.

The Authority is allowed to invest in certain "approved investment securities" in accordance with HUD guidelines. Approved investments generally include any of the following:

- Direct obligations of the United States of America or obligations fully guaranteed by the United States
 of America.
- Bonds, indentures, notes or other obligations issued by agencies or instrumentalities of the United States of America, the obligations of which are full faith and credit obligations of the United States of America.
- c. Interest-bearing time or demand deposits or similar banking arrangements which are federally insured in excess of the insurance coverage, may be made at a depository institution provided it is 100 percent collateralized by any of the securities listed above held in the Authority's name.
- d. Certificates of deposits or other similar banking arrangements, which are federally insured. A deposit in excess of the insurance coverage may be made at a depository institution provided that it is 100 percent collateralized by any of the securities listed above.
- Repurchase agreements collateralized by direct obligations of, or obligations in the payment of principal and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed as to full and timely payment by the United States of America.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 2: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

The Authority reports all of its investments at fair value, hence no additional disclosure is required under GASB Technical Bulletin No. 2003-1, Disclosure Requirements for Derivatives Not Reported at Fair Value on the Statement of Net Assets.

The Authority has no policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits. The three custodial credit-risk categories are defined as follows:

- Insured or collateralized with securities held by the entity or by its agent (correspondent bank or Federal Reserve Bank) in the Entity's name.
- Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution trust department or agent in entity's name.
- c. Uncollateralized or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution or by its trust department or agent but not in the entity's name.

The Authority's cash and investments with financial institutions at March 31, 2020 and 2019, consist of the following:

| | Credi | it-Risk C | atego | ries | | Total Bank Balance | Carrying Amount |
|------|-------------|-----------|-------|------|---|-----------------------|--------------------|
| | 1 | 2 | | | 3 | | |
| 2020 | \$2,843,653 | \$ | | \$ | - | \$ 2,843,653 | \$2,663,974 |
| 2019 | \$2,457,631 | \$ | - | \$ | - | \$ 2,457,631 | \$2,395,181 |

NOTE 3: RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

Restricted deposits at March 31, 2020, include the following:

| Nature of Restriction | 2020 | | 2019 |
|------------------------------|---------------|----|---------|
| Tenant Security Deposits | \$ 84,827 | \$ | 84,576 |
| FSS Escrows | 32,783 | | 55,558 |
| Investor Restricted Reserves | 83,606 | | 75,588 |
| Escrows Held by VHDA | 129,272 | | 86,997 |
| SRAP | 205,483 | | 139,814 |
| HAP | 29,727 | | 24,079 |
| Total Restricted Deposits | \$ 565,698 | \$ | 466,612 |
| | | _ | |

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 4: RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

| | | 2020 | 2019 | | |
|---------------------------------------|------|---------|------|---------|--|
| Tenant Receivable: Dwelling Rents | \$ | 19,069 | \$ | 22,769 | |
| Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts | 2.50 | (8,319) | - | (494) | |
| Net Tenant Accounts Receivable | - | 10,750 | | 22,275 | |
| Other Receivable: | | | | | |
| HUD | | 4,792 | | 25,868 | |
| City of Bristol | | 3,455 | | - | |
| Miscellaneous | | 12,650 | | 62,203 | |
| Net Other Receivable | | 20,897 | | 88,071 | |
| Total Receivables | \$ | 31,647 | _\$ | 110,346 | |

NOTE 5: PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER ASSETS

Prepaid expenses and other assets at March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:

| | | 2020 | 2019 |
|---|----------------|--------|--------------|
| Property and Liability Insurance | \$ | 36,584 | \$ 52,728 |
| Prepaid Expenses | | 12,224 | 11,642 |
| | | 48,808 | 64,370 |
| Component Unit - Insurance | J | 7,815 | 7,797 |
| Total Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets | \$ | 56,623 | \$ 72,167 |

NOTE 6: NOTES RECEIVABLE

At March 31, 2020 and 2019, the Authority has two Notes Receivable from its Component Unit, Village at Oakview LLC. The first note in the amount of \$1,238,178 does not accrue interest and matures in October 2046. The second note in the amount of \$200,000 accrues interest at 2.5% per annum and matures in October 2046. The principal and accrued interest of these notes has been eliminated in the entity-wide consolidation to the extent of audited amounts as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the closing dates of Village at Oakview, LLC.

At March 31, 2020, the Authority is also due developer fees of \$286,164 and \$264,010 from Component Units Sapling Grove Apartments, LLC (SGA) and Village at Oakview, LLC (V@O), respectively. The aggregate amount of the developer fees is eliminated in the entity-wide consolidation at March 31, 2020.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 6: NOTES RECEIVABLE (continued)

At March 31, 2019, the Authority is also due developer fees of \$290,184 and \$359,010 from Component Units Sapling Grove Apartments, LLC (SGA) and Village at Oakview, LLC (V@O), respectively. The aggregate amount of the developer fees is eliminated in the entity-wide consolidation at March 31, 2019. The developer fees shall be repaid from available cash flows from operations as defined in the operating agreements.

NOTE 7: OTHER ASSETS - NONCURRENT

Costs incurred by the Component Units to obtain tax credits are capitalized and amortized over 30 years. At March 31, 2020 and 2019, other noncurrent assets consist of tax credit fees, net of accumulated amortization, in the amount of \$84,546 and \$90,810, respectively.

NOTE 8: CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

A summary of the changes in capital assets during the year ended March 31, 2020 is as follows:

| | 3/31/2019 | ı | ncrease | D | ecrease | 3/30/2020 |
|--|------------------|----|-----------|----|----------|------------------|
| Land | \$ 962,573 | \$ | 7 | \$ | - | \$ 962,573 |
| Buildings and Improvements | 37,485,880 | | - | | :=: | 37,485,880 |
| Furniture, Equipment and Machinery - Dwelling | 586,618 | | 2:= | | | 586,618 |
| Furniture, Equipment and Machinery - Nondwelling | 229,721 | | 11,089 | | (10,942) | 229,868 |
| Construction in Process | 58,683 | | 772,605 | | = | 831,288 |
| Total at Historical Cost | 39,323,475 | | 783,694 | | (10,942) | 40,096,227 |
| Buildings | (24,592,863) | | (657,449) | | | (25,250,312) |
| Furniture, Equipment and Machinery | (655,903) | | (48,763) | | 17,206 | (687,460) |
| Total Accumulated Depreciation | (25,248,766) | | (706,212) | | 17,206 | (25,937,772) |
| Capital Assets, Net | \$ 14,074,709 | \$ | 77,482 | \$ | 6,264 | \$ 14,158,455 |

Depreciation expense for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, was \$706,212 and \$821,938, respectively and charged as follows:

| | 2020 | 2019 |
|----------------------------|-----------|-----------|
| Low Rent Public Housing | \$322,709 | \$459,339 |
| Component Unit | 374,167 | 353,263 |
| Business Activities | 9,336 | 9,336 |
| Total Depreciation | \$706,212 | \$821,938 |

NOTE 9: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Accounts payable at March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:

| | 27 | 2019 | | |
|-------------------------|----|--------|----|--------|
| Vendors and Contractors | \$ | 26,643 | \$ | 29,199 |
| City of Bristol (PILOT) | | 37,731 | | 37,400 |
| Total Accounts Payable | \$ | 64,374 | \$ | 66,599 |

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 10: ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities at March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:

| | *** | 2020 | 2019 |
|--|-----|---------|---------------|
| Wages and Payroll Taxes | \$ | 4,298 | \$ 4,380 |
| HAP Payable | | 456 | 9,676 |
| Accrued Compensated Absences - Current Portion | | 49,165 | 36,861 |
| Long Term Debt - Current Portion | | 30,726 | 29,975 |
| Accrued Interest Payable (VHDA) | | 2,671 | 2,442 |
| Unearned Revenue | | 9,183 | 5,254 |
| Accrued Utilities | | 20,875 | 24,983 |
| Tenant Security Deposits | | 84,827 | 84,576 |
| FSS Escrow | | 32,783 | 55,558 |
| Total Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities | \$ | 234,984 | \$ 253,705 |

NOTE 11: NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

The following is a summary of changes in non-current liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2020:

| | 3/31/2019 | Increases | Decreases | 3/31/2020 | Current | Non-Current |
|-------------------------------|-------------|------------|--------------|--------------|-----------|--------------|
| Compensated Absences | \$ 140,811 | \$ 50,349 | \$ (43,626) | \$ 147,534 | \$ 49,165 | \$ 98,369 |
| Long-Term Debt | 1,187,322 | - | (29,941) | 1,157,381 | 30,726 | 1,126,655 |
| Accrued Pension and OPEB | 353,271 | 256,497 | (206,541) | 403,227 | .= | 403,227 |
| Other Non-Current Liabilities | 326,000 | 198,000 | (425,000) | 99,000 | • | 99,000 |
| | \$2,007,404 | \$ 504,846 | \$ (705,108) | \$ 1,807,142 | \$ 79,891 | \$ 1,727,251 |

Compensated Absences - Represents the amount of accumulated leave for which employees are entitled to receive payment in accordance with the Authority's Personnel Policy.

Long-Term Debt – Includes 2 mortgage notes payable to VHDA from the Component Units. The principal balances at December 31, 2019, the closing date of the Component Units are as follows:

| _ | SGA | _ | V@0 | | Total |
|----|---------|-----------------------|----------|---|--|
| \$ | 361,228 | \$ | 796,153 | \$ | 1,157,381 |
| | (9,831) | | (20,895) | | (30,726) |
| \$ | 351,397 | \$ | 775,258 | \$ | 1,126,655 |
| | \$ | \$ 361,228 (9,831) | (9,831) | \$ 361,228 \$ 796,153 (9,831) (20,895) | \$ 361,228 \$ 796,153 \$ (9,831) (20,895) |

The SGA VHDA note has a stated interest rate of 3.50% and matures in November 2043. Required monthly payments of principal and interest are \$1,860. The V@O VHDA note has a stated interest rate of 2.00% and matures in July, 2048. Required monthly payments of principal and interest are \$3,050.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 11: NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (continued)

Required principal and interest payments for the next 5 years ending December 31, are as follows:

| | | S | GA | | | V | @ O | | | | | |
|------------|----|----------|----|----------|----|-----------|------------|---------|-----------------|--|-------|--|
| | Р | rincipal | | Interest | F | Principal | Interest | | Interest | | Total | |
| 2020 | \$ | 9,831 | \$ | 12,486 | \$ | 20,895 | \$ | 15,698 | \$ 58,910 | | | |
| 2021 | | 10,181 | | 12,137 | | 21,316 | | 15,276 | 58,910 | | | |
| 2022 | | 10,543 | | 11,774 | | 21,747 | | 14,846 | 58,910 | | | |
| 2023 | | 10,918 | | 11,399 | | 22,185 | | 14,407 | 58,909 | | | |
| 2024 | | 11,307 | | 11,011 | | 22,633 | | 13,959 | 58,910 | | | |
| Thereafter | | 308,448 | | 113,727 | | 687,377 | | 174,265 | 1,283,817 | | | |
| TOTAL | \$ | 361,228 | \$ | 172,534 | \$ | 796,153 | \$ | 248,451 | \$ 1,578,366 | | | |

Accrued Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) – At March 31, 2020 and 2019, the Authority reported liabilities of \$403,227 and \$353,271, respectively for Pension and Other Post-Employment Benefits.

Other Non-Current Liabilities - Other Non-Current liabilities include developer fees of \$99,000 not eliminated in the entity-wide consolidation and extended to the Component Units after December 31, 2019, the closing date of the Component Units.

NOTE 12: PENSION PLAN

The Authority contributes to the Virginia Retirement System (VRS), a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for political subdivisions in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

The VRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for VRS. A copy of that report may be obtained by visiting the VRS website at https://www.varetire.org/pdf/publications/2019-annual-report.pdf or by writing the System's CFO at P. O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA 23218-2500.

a. <u>Plan Description</u> -. All of the Authority's eligible full-time employees participate in the Virginia Retirement System (the VRS / System). The System is a multiple employer defined benefit cost sharing public employee retirement system covering substantially all employees of the State and its component units, as well as employees of participating non-state government entities who are not participants of another state or municipal retirement system. Benefits vest after five years of service credit. Members earn one month of service credit for each month they are employed, and their employer is paying into the VRS. Members are eligible to purchase prior public service, active duty military service, certain periods of leave and previously refunded VRS service as credit in their plan.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 12: PENSION PLAN (continued)

- a. <u>Plan Description (continued)</u> VRS administers three defined benefit plans for local government employees—Plan 1, Plan 2, and Hybrid Retirement Plan:
- Members hired before July 1, 2010 and who have service credits before July 1, 2010 are covered
 under Plan 1. Non-hazardous duty members are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit
 beginning at age 65 with at least five years of service credit or age 50 with at least 30 years of
 service credit. They may retire with a reduced benefit as early as, age 55 with at least 5 years of
 service credit or age 50 with at least 10 years of service credit.
- Members hired or rehired on or after July 1, 2010 and who have no service credits before July 1, 2010 are covered under Plan 2. Non-hazardous duty members are eligible for an unreduced benefit beginning at their normal Social Security retirement age with at least five years of service credit or when the sum of their age and service equals 90. They may retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 60 with at least five years of service credit.
- Members hired on or after January 1, 2014 and who have no service credits before January 1, 2014
 are covered under a Hybrid Retirement Plan, a combination of a defined benefit plan (similar to Plan
 2) and a defined contribution plan (a mandatory 1% of compensation into a 401 (a) plan account).

Non-hazardous duty members are eligible for an unreduced benefit beginning at their normal Social Security retirement age with at least five years of service credit or when the sum of their age and service equals 90. They may retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 60 with at least five years of service credit.

The VRS Basic Benefit is a lifetime monthly benefit based on a retirement multiplier as a percentage of the member's average final compensation multiplied by the member's total service credit. Under Plan 1, average final compensation is the average of the member's 36 consecutive months of highest compensation. Under Plan 2 and Hybrid Retirement Plan's defined benefit portion, average final compensation is the average of the member's 60 consecutive months of highest compensation. The retirement multiplier for non-hazardous duty members is 1.70%. The retirement multiplier for sheriffs and regional jail superintendents is 1.85%. The retirement multiplier for eligible political subdivision hazardous duty employees other than sheriffs and jail superintendents is 1.70% or 1.85% as elected by the employer. At retirement, members can elect the Basic Benefit, the Survivor Option, a Partial Lump-Sum Option Plan (PLOP) or the Advance Pension Option. A retirement reduction factor is applied to the Basic Benefit amount for members electing the Survivor Option, PLOP, or Advance Pension Option or those retiring with a reduced benefit.

Retirees are eligible for an annual cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) effective July 1 of the second calendar year of retirement. Under Plan 1, the COLA cannot exceed 5.00%; under Plan 2, the COLA cannot exceed 6.00%. During years of no inflation or deflation, the COLA is 0.00%. The VRS also provides death and disability benefits. Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the General Assembly of Virginia.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 12: PENSION PLAN (continued)

b. <u>Employees Covered by Benefit Terms</u> - As of the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms of the pension plan:

| Inactive Members or Their Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits | 25 |
|--|----|
| Inactive Members: | |
| Vested | 1 |
| Non-Vested | 16 |
| Active Elsewhere in VRS | 3 |
| Total Inactive Members | 20 |
| Active Members | 28 |
| Total Covered Employees | 73 |

c. <u>Contributions</u> - The contribution requirement for active employees is governed by Title 51.1-145 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding provided to state agencies by the Virginia General Assembly. Employees are required to contribute 5.00% of their compensations toward their retirement. Prior to July 1, 2012, all or part of the 5.00% member contribution may have been assumed by the employer. Beginning July 1, 2012, new employees were required to pay the 5.00% member contribution. In addition, for existing employees; employers were required to begin making the employee pay the 5.00% member contribution. This could be phased in over a period of up to 5 years and the employer is required to provide a salary increase equal to the amount of the increase in the employee-paid member contribution. BRHA's contractually required contribution rates for the year ended March 31, 2020 was 7.36% of covered employee compensation. These rates, when combined with employee contributions, are expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions from BRHA to the pension plan were \$80,617 and \$91,215 for the years ended June 30, 2019, and June 30, 2018, respectively.

Liabilities, expenses and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions

a. Actuarial Assumptions -

The total pension liability for General Employees in the Authority's retirement plan was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2019.

Inflation 2.50%

Salary increases, including

inflation 3.5% - 5.35%

Investment rate of return 6.75% net of pension plan investment

expense, including inflation*

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 12: PENSION PLAN (continued)

a. Actuarial Assumptions (continued)

*Administrative expenses as a percent of the market value of assets for the last experience study were found to be approximately 0.06% of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an assumed investment return rate for GASB purposes of slightly more than the assumed 6.75%. Since the difference was minimal, a more conservative 6.75% investment return assumption was used for preparation of pension liabilities.

Mortality rates - Largest Ten Locality Employers - General and Non-Hazardous Duty Employees

Pre-Retirement:

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates to 81 and older projected with Scale BB to 2020; males 95% of rates; females 105% of rates.

Post-Retirement:

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older projected with Scale BB to 2020; males set forward 3 years; females 1.0% increase compounded from ages 70 to 90.

Post-Disablement:

RP-2014 Disability Life Mortality Table projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2 years, 110% of rates; females 125% of rates

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study are as follows:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-retirement

healthy, and disabled

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-

2014 projected to 2020

Retirement Rates

Lowered retirement rates at older ages and extended final retirement age from 70 to 75

Withdrawal Rates

Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience

at each year age and service year

Disability Rates

Lowered disability rates

Salary Scale

No change

Line of Duty Disability

Increased rate from 14% to 20%

Discount Rate

Decrease rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

XX/-!-L4-J

BRISTOL REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY Bristol, Virginia

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 12: PENSION PLAN (continued)

a. Actuarial Assumptions (continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on the System's investments was determined using a lognormal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of System's investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

| Asset Class (Strategy) | Target Allocation | Arithmetic Long-Term Expected Rate of Return | Weighted Average Long-Term Expected Rate of Return |
|-------------------------------------|----------------------|---|--|
| Public Equity | 34.00% | 5.61% | 1.91% |
| Fixed Income | 15.00% | 0.88% | 0.13% |
| Credit Strategies | 14.00% | 5.13% | 0.72% |
| Real Assets | 14.00% | 5.27% | 0.74% |
| Private Equity | 14.00% | 8.77% | 1.23% |
| MAPS-Multi-Asset Public Strategies | 6.00% | 3.52% | 0.21% |
| PIP-Private Investment Partnership | 3.00% | 6.29% | 0.19% |
| Total | 100.00% | | 5.13.% |
| | Inflation | _ | 2.50% |
| *Expected arithmetic nominal return | | | 7.63% |

^{*} The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.63%. However, one-year returns do not take into account the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the system, stochastic projections are employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. The results provide a range of returns over various time periods that ultimately provide a median return of 7.11%, including expected inflation of 2.50%. The VRS Board elected a long-term rate of 6.75% which is roughly at the 40th percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset allocation.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 12: PENSION PLAN (continued)

a. Actuarial Assumptions (continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that System member contributions will be made per the VRS Statutes and the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees and the member rate. Consistent with the phased-in funding provided by the General Assembly for state and teacher employer contributions; political subdivisions were also provided with an opportunity to use an alternate employer contribution rate. For the year ended June 30, 2019, the alternate rate was the employer contribution rate used in FY 2012 or 100% of the actuarially determined employer contribution rate from the June 30, 2017, actuarial valuations, whichever was greater. From July 1, 2019 on, participating employers are assumed to continue to contribute 100% of the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the Long-term expected rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Changes in Net Pension Liability of the VRS Pension Plan

| | Total Pension | Plan Fiduciary Net Position | Net Pension |
|-------------------------------------|-------------------|--------------------------------|----------------------------|
| | Liability (a) | (b) | Liability (Asset) (a-b) |
| Balances at June 30, 2018 | \$ 22,497,734,504 | \$ 20,302,822,552 | \$ 2,194,911,952 |
| Changes for the year: | | | |
| Service Cost | 556, 149, 437 | - | 556,149,437 |
| Interest | 1,535,532,384 | - | 1,535,532,384 |
| Benefit changes | 3,948,465 | ~ | 3,948,465 |
| Difference between expected and | | | |
| actual experience | 45,031,955 | | 45,031,955 |
| Changes of assumptions | 691,407,023 | * | 691,407,023 |
| Contributions-employer | | 499,292,259 | (499,292,259) |
| Contributions-employee | ? | 248,421,683 | (248,421,683) |
| Net investment income | w : | 1,345,759,237 | (1,345,759,237) |
| Benefit payments, including refunds | (1,082,791,836) | (1,082,791,836) | |
| Refunds of employee contributions | (40,248,647) | (40,248,647) | |
| Administrative expense | - | (13, 368, 662) | 13,368,662 |
| Other changes | - | (852,608) | 852,608 |
| Net Changes | 1,709,028,781 | 956,211,426 | 752,817,355 |
| Balances at June 30, 2019 | \$ 24,206,763,285 | \$ 21,259,033,978 | \$ 2,947,729,307 |

Totals are from Schedule E Total Pension Liability and Fiduciary Net Position on pages 108-131 of the GASB Statement No. 68 Report.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 12: PENSION PLAN (continued)

b. <u>Net Pension Liability</u> – BRHA's Net Pension Liability was measured as of June 30, 2019. The total pension liability used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2018, using updated actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2019. The following table summarizes the changes in BRHA's Net Pension Liability which resulted in \$311,938 being reported as a pension liability at March 31, 2020.

| | tal Pension Liability (a) | n Fiduciary et Position (b) | et Pension bility (Asset) (a-b) |
|-------------------------------------|---------------------------------|-----------------------------------|---------------------------------------|
| Balances at June 30, 2018 | \$ 3,416,102 | \$ 3,144,831 | \$ 271,271 |
| Changes for the year: | | | |
| Service Cost | 92,755 | - u | 92,755 |
| Interest | 231,409 | - | 231,409 |
| Changes of assumptions | 88,625 | * | 88,625 |
| Difference between expected and | | | |
| actual experience | (44,246) | | (44,246 |
| Contributions-employer | • | 73,840 | (73,840 |
| Contributions-employee | | 49,921 | (49,921 |
| Net investment income | - | 206,337 | (206,337 |
| Benefit payments, including refunds | | | |
| of employee contributions | (220,507) | (220,507) | - |
| Administrative expense | | (2,092) | 2,092 |
| Other changes | - y- | (130) | 130 |
| Net Changes | 148,036 | 107,369 | 40,667 |
| Balances at June 30, 2019 | \$ 3,564,138 | \$ 3,252,200 | \$ 311,938 |

c. <u>Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate</u> - The following presents BRHA's Net Pension Liability using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what it would be if it were calculated using a discount rate one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate:

| | 1% Decrease (5.75%) | Current Discount Rate (6.75%) | 1% Increase (7.75%) |
|--------------------------------------|------------------------|-------------------------------------|------------------------|
| BRHA's Net Pension Liability (Asset) | \$693,391 | \$311,938 | \$4,761 |

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 12: PENSION PLAN (continued)

d. <u>Pension Expense (Income)</u> - For the year ended March 31, 2020, BRHA recognized pension expense of \$5,057. The components of pension income are as follows:

| Service Costs | \$ 92,755 |
|--|--------------|
| Interest on the total pension liability | 231,409 |
| Expensed portion of current period difference between expected and | |
| actual experience in the total pension liability | (15,690) |
| Expensed portion of current-period changes of assumptions | 31,427 |
| Member contributions | (49,921) |
| Projected earnings on plan investments | (216,674) |
| Expensed portion of current period difference between actual and | |
| projected earnings on plan investments | 2,067 |
| Administrative expense | 2,092 |
| Other | 130 |
| Recognition of beginning deferred outflows of resources as pension | |
| expense | 55,258 |
| Recognition of beginning deferred inflows of resources as pension | |
| expense | (127,796) |
| Pension Expense (Income) | \$ 5,057 |

e. <u>Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources</u> - As of March 31, 2020, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

| | Ou | eferred tflows of sources | Deferred Inflows of Resources | | |
|--|----|---------------------------------|-------------------------------------|---------|--|
| Differences between expected and actual experience | \$ | - | \$ | 93,064 | |
| Changes of assumptions | | 57,198 | | - | |
| Net difference between projected and actual | | | | | |
| earnings on pension plan investments | | | | 27,515 | |
| Employer contributions subsequent to the | | | | | |
| measurement date | | 56,362 | | | |
| Total | \$ | 113,560 | \$ | 120,579 | |

Deferred outflows of resources in the amount of \$56,362 resulting from the Authority's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net Pension Liability in the year ended March 31, 2021.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 12: PENSION PLAN (continued)

e. <u>Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources (continued)</u> - Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Reporting Date Ending June 30:

| 2021 | \$ (48,750) |
|------------|----------------|
| 2022 | (15,985) |
| 2023 | (715) |
| 2024 | 2,069 |
| 2025 | - |
| Thereafter | - |

Information about the VRS Political Subdivision Retirement Plan is also available in the separately issued VRS 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of the 2019 VRS CAFR may be downloaded from the VRS website at http://www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2019-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the System's Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500.

NOTE 13: OTHER POST EMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

The Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Group Life Insurance Program (OPEB-GLI) is a multiple employer, cost-sharing plan. It provides coverage to state employees, teachers, and employees of participating political subdivisions. The Group Life Insurance Program was established pursuant to §51.1-500 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, as amended, and which provides the authority under which benefit terms are established or may be amended. The Group Life Insurance Program is a defined benefit plan that provides a basic group life insurance benefit for employees of participating employers. For purposes of measuring the net OPEB-GLI liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the OPEB-GLI, and OPEB-GLI expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the VRS Group Life Insurance program OPEB and the additions to/deductions from the VRS Group Life Insurance Program OPEB's net fiduciary position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported by VRS. In addition, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

a. <u>Plan Description</u> - All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the state agencies, teachers and employees of participating political subdivisions are automatically covered by the VRS Group Life Insurance Program upon employment. This plan is administered by the Virginia Retirement System (VRS), along with pensions and other OBEB plans, for public employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia. In addition to the Basic Group Life Insurance benefit, members are also eligible to elect additional coverage for themselves as well as a spouse or dependent children through the Optional Group Life Insurance Program. Since this is a separate and fully insured program, it is not included as part of the Group Life Insurance Program OPEB.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 13: OTHER POST EMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (continued)

a. Plan Description (continued)

Significant plan provisions of the Political Subdivision Group Life Insurance Program OPEB, including eligibility, coverage and benefits are as follows:

Eligible Employees

The Group Life Insurance Program was established July 1, 1960, for state employees, teachers and employees of political subdivisions that elect the program.

 Basic group life insurance coverage is automatic upon employment. Coverage ends for employees who leave their position before retirement eligibility or who take a refund of their accumulated retirement member contributions and accrued interest.

Benefit Amounts

The benefits payable under the Group Life Insurance Program have several components.

- <u>Natural Death Benefit</u> The natural death benefit is equal to the employee's covered compensation rounded to the next highest thousand and then doubled.
- Accidental Death Benefit The accidental death benefit is double the natural death benefit.
- Other Benefit Provisions In addition to the basic natural and accidental death benefits, the program provides additional benefits provided under specific circumstances.

Reduction in Benefit Amounts

The benefit amounts provided to members covered under the Group Life Insurance Program are subject to a reduction factor. The benefit amount reduces by 25% on January 1 following one calendar year of separation. The benefit amount reduces by an additional 25% on each subsequent January 1 until it reaches 25% of its original value.

Minimum Benefit Amount and Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA)

For covered members with at least 30 years of creditable service, there is a minimum benefit payable under the Group Life Insurance Program. The minimum benefit was set at \$8,000 by statute. This amount is increased annually based on the VRS Plan 2 cost-of-living adjustment and was increased to \$8,463 effective June 30, 2020.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 13: OTHER POST EMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (continued)

b. Contributions- The contribution requirements for the Group Life Insurance Program are governed by §51.1-506 and §51.1-508 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding provided to state agencies and school divisions by the Virginia General Assembly. The total rate for the Group Life Insurance Program was 1.31% of covered employee compensation. This was allocated into an employee and an employer component using a 60/40 split. The employee component was 0.79% (1.31% X 60%) and the employer component was 0.52% (1.31% X 40%). Employers may elect to pay all or part of the employee contribution, however the employer must pay all of the employer contribution. Each employer's contractually required employer contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2019 was 0.52% of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018. The actuarially determined rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected to finance the costs of benefits payable during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the Group Life Insurance Program from the entity were \$5,723 and \$5,364 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018, respectively.

Liabilities, expenses and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to OPEB

a. Actuarial Valuation Method and Assumptions

The Total GLI OPEB Liability was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2019.

Inflation 2.50%

Salary increases, including

inflation 3.5% - 5.35%

Investment rate of return 6.75% net of pension plan investment

expense, including inflation*

*Administrative expenses as a percent of the market value of assets for the last experience study were found to be approximately 0.06% of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an assumed investment return rate for GASB purposes of slightly more than the assumed 6.75%. However, since the difference was minimal, and a more conservative 6.75% investment return assumption provided a projected plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit payments, the long-term expected rate of return on investments was assumed to be 6.75% to simplify preparation of the liabilities.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 13: OTHER POST EMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (continued)

a. Actuarial Valuation Method and Assumptions (continued)

Mortality rates - Largest Ten Locality Employers - General and Non-Hazardous Duty Employees

Pre-Retirement:

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates to 81 and older projected with Scale BB to 2020; males 95% of rates; females 105% of rates.

Post-Retirement:

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older projected with Scale BB to 2020; males set forward 3 years; females 1.0% increase compounded from ages 70 to 90.

Post-Disablement:

RP-2014 Disability Life Mortality Table projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2 years, 110% of rates; females 125% of rates

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study are as follows:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-retirement,

healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-

2014 projected to 2020

Retirement Rates Lowered retirement rates at older ages and

extended final retirement age from 70 to 75

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience

at each year age and service year

Disability Rates Lowered disability rates

Salary Scale No change

Line of Duty Disability Increased rate from 14% to 20%

Discount Rate Decrease from 7.00% to 6.75%

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 13: OTHER POST EMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (continued)

a. Actuarial Valuation Method and Assumptions (continued)

Net GLI OPEB Liability

The Net OPEB liability (NOL) for the Group Life Insurance Program represents the program's total OPEB liability determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 74, less the associated fiduciary net position. As of the Measurement Date of June 30, 2019, NOL amounts for the Group Life Insurance Program are as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

| | Group Life Insurance OPEB Progr | | | | |
|---|---------------------------------------|------------------------|--|--|--|
| Total GLI OPEB Liability Less: Plan Fiduciary Net Position | \$ | 3,390,238 1,762,972 | | | |
| Employers' Net GLI OPEB Liability (Asset) | \$ | 1,627,266 | | | |
| Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Political Subdivision GLI OPEB Liability | | 52.00% | | | |

The Total GLI OPEB liability is calculated by the System's actuary, and each plan's fiduciary net position is reported in the System's financial statements. The Net GLI OPEB liability is disclosed in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 74 in the System's notes to the financial statements and required supplementary information.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on the System's investments was determined using a lognormal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of System's investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the table on the following page.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 13: OTHER POST EMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (continued)

a. Actuarial Valuation Method and Assumptions (continued)

| Asset Class (Strategy) | Target Allocation | Arithmetic Long-Term Expected | Weighted Average Long-Term Expected |
|---|----------------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|
| | | Rate of Return | Rate of Return |
| Public Equity Fixed Income | 34.00% 15.00% | 5.61% 0.88% | 1.91% 0.13% |
| Credit Strategies | 14.00% | 5.13% | 0.72% |
| Real Assets | 14.00% | 5.27% | 0.74% |
| Private Equity MAPS-Multi-Asset Public Strategies | 14.00% 6.00% | 8.77% 3.52% | 1.23% 0.21% |
| PIP-Private Investment Partnership | 3.00% | 6.29% | 0.19% |
| Total | 100.00% | - | 5.13.% |
| | Inflation | _ | 2.50% |
| *Expected arithm | netic nominal return | | 7.63% |

^{*} The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.63%. However, one-year returns do not take into account the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the system, stochastic projections are employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. The results provide a range of returns over various time periods that ultimately provide a median return of 7.11%, including expected inflation of 2.50%. The VRS Board elected a long-term rate of 6.75% which is roughly at the 40th percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset allocation.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total GLI OPEB liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will be made per the VRS guidance and the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees and the member rate. Through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, the rate contributed by the entity for the GLI OPEB will be subject to the portion of the VRS Board-certified rates that are funded by the Virginia General Assembly which was 100% of the actuarially determined contribution rate. From July 1, 2019 on, employers are assumed to continue to contribute 100% of the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the GLI OPEB's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of eligible employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total GLI OPEB liability.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 13: OTHER POST EMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (continued)

- b. Net OPEB Liability At March 31, 2020, BRHA reported a liability of \$91,289 for its proportionate share of the Net GLI OPEB Liability. The Net GLI OPEB Liability was measured as of June 30, 2019 and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the Net OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018. The covered employer's proportion of the Net OPEB Liability was based on the covered employer's actuarially determined employer contributions to the Group Life Insurance Program for the year ended June 30, 2018 relative to the total of the actuarially determined employer contributions for all participating employers. At June 30, 2019, the BRHA employer's proportion was 0.00561% as compared to 0.00543% at June 30, 2018.
- c. <u>Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate</u> The following presents the net GLI OPEB liability of BRHA using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what BRHA's net GLI OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate:

| | 1% | Current | 1% |
|-----------------------------------|-----------|---------------|----------|
| | Decrease | Discount Rate | Increase |
| - 10 | (5.75%) | (6.75%) | (7.75%) |
| BRHA's Net OPEB Liability (Asset) | \$119,929 | \$91,289 | \$68,064 |

- d. <u>OPEB Expense</u>- For the year ended March 31, 2020, BRHA recognized GLI OPEB expense of \$3,000. Since there was a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of the OPEB expense was related to deferred amounts from changes in proportion.
- e. <u>Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources</u> At March 31, 2020, BRHA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to GLI OPEB from the following sources:

| | Deferred Outflows of Resources | | Deferred Inflows of Resources | |
|--|--------------------------------------|--------|-------------------------------------|-------|
| Differences between expected and actual experience | \$ | 6,000 | \$ | 1,000 |
| Net difference between projected and actual | | | | |
| earnings on OPEB plan investments | | _ | | 2,000 |
| Changes of assumptions | | 6,000 | | 3,000 |
| Changes in proportion | | 2,000 | | - |
| Employer contributions subsequent to the | | | | |
| measurement date | | 11,053 | | • |
| Total | \$ | 25,053 | \$ | 6,000 |

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 13: OTHER POST EMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (continued)

e. <u>Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources (continued)</u>- Deferred outflows of resources in the amount of \$11,053 resulting from the Authority's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net GLI OPEB Liability in the year ended March 31, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Reporting Date Ending June 30:

| 2021 | \$ (2,000) |
|------------|---------------|
| 2022 | (2,000) |
| 2023 | (2,000) |
| 2024 | (2,000) |
| 2025 | |
| Thereafter | _ |

Detailed information about the Group Life Insurance Program's Fiduciary Net Position is available in the separately issued VRS 2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of the 2019 VRS CAFR may be downloaded from the VRS website at http://www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2019-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the System's Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500.

NOTE 14: HUD PHA GRANTS

HUD contributions, recognized as grant revenue, for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

| | (| Operating Grant | Capital Grant | Total 2020 | Total 2019 |
|---|----|--------------------|------------------|-----------------|-----------------|
| Low Rent Public Housing - Operating Subsidy | \$ | 1,415,008 | \$ | \$ 1,415,008 | \$ 1,490,968 |
| Housing Choice Vouchers | | 1,266,988 | - | 1,266,988 | 1,278,325 |
| Capital Fund Program | | | 1,299,691 | 1,299,691 | 160,986 |
| Resident Opportunity and Self Sufficiency | | 50,577 | | 50,577 | 122,754 |
| Community Development Block Grant | | 3,455 | • | 3,455 | - |
| TOTAL HUD PHA Grants | \$ | 2,736,028 | \$ 1,299,691 | \$ 4,035,719 | \$ 3,053,033 |

NOTE 15: CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION TO COMPONENT UNIT

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Authority's Component Unit, Village at Oakview, LLC, received a capital contribution from its investor member in the amount of \$265,000.

NOTE 16: RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Significant losses are covered by commercial insurance for all major programs and there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage. Claims expenditures and liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred, the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated, and said amount exceeds insurance coverage. Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the last four years.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 17: CONTINGENCIES AND OTHER MATTERS

- a. <u>Litigation and Other Matters</u> Certain claims, suits and complaints may arise in the ordinary course of business. None have been filed and none are pending against the Authority. In the opinion of the Authority's management, any such matters are adequately covered by insurance.
- b. Grants The Authority has received various other grants for specific purposes. These grants are subject to financial and compliance audits. Such audits could result in requests for reimbursement to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. The Authority management is of the opinion that disallowances, if any, will not be material.
- c. <u>Insurance Claims</u> In February 2020, nine public housing units were damaged by fire. As of March 31, 2020, the units have been vacated and there is an insurance claim pending to cover the costs of remediation.
- d. <u>Letters of Credit</u> During 2020, the Authority acquired letters of credit from New Peoples Bank Inc. and First Bank & Trust Company each for an amount up to \$250,000. The letters of credit mature in March 2021 and accrue interest at 4.25% and 3.75% per annum, respectively. As of March 31, 2020, the Authority has not drawn funds from these instruments and there is no liability reported in these financial statements.

NOTE 18: CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that are potentially subject to concentration of credit risk consist principally of cash deposits and investments in financial institutions. All the deposits of the Bristol Redevelopment and Housing Authority are either insured or collateralized by using the Dedicated Method whereby all deposits that exceed the federal depository insurance coverage level are collateralized with securities held by the Authority's agents in these units' names. Funds are maintained in accordance with Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (SPDA), Section 2.2- 4400 et. seq. of the Code of Virginia or covered by federal depository insurance. The credit risk is measured by the credit quality rating of investments in debt securities, as described by a national statistical rating organization such as Standard and Poor's (S&P). The Authority's policy provides that investments in fixed income securities have a rating of A or better and be guaranteed by the State or Federal government. The Authority's policy is to select investments of varied maturities to mitigate interest rate risk. See also Note 2.

NOTE 19: ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

The Section 8 and the Low Rent Public Housing programs are economically dependent on annual grants from HUD.

NOTE 20: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 21, 2020, the date on which the financial statements were available to be issued. Prior to the balance sheet date, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of COVID-19, a novel strain of Coronavirus, a pandemic. The coronavirus outbreak is disrupting supply chains and affecting production and sales across a range of industries. The extent of the impact of the outbreak on our operational and financial performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, impact to the Authority's consolidated entities and the related investors, and the operations of the Authority, and governmental, regulatory and private sector responses. The financial statements do not reflect any adjustments as a result of the subsequent increase in economic uncertainty.



SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

| FEDERAL GRANTOR/PROGRAM | CFDA NUMBER | FEDERAL EXPENDITURES |
|--|----------------|-------------------------|
| U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HUD | | |
| Low Rent Public Housing | 14.850* | \$ 1,415,008 |
| Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services | 14.870 | 50,577 |
| Housing Choice Vouchers | 14.871 | 1,266,988 |
| Public Housing Capital Fund | 14.872* | 1,299,691 |
| PASS-THROUGH FROM CITY OF BRISTOL | | |
| Community Development Block Grant | 14.218 | 3,455 |
| TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HUD | | \$ 4,035,719 |
| TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE | | \$ 4,035,719 |

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 1: BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal grant activity of the Bristol Redevelopment and Housing Authority under programs of the federal government for the year ended March 31, 2020. The information is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of operations of the Authority, it is not intended to and does not present the net position, changes in net position or cash flows of the Authority. Some amounts presented in the Schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the financial statements.

NOTE 2: MAJOR PROGRAMS

The (*) to the right of a CFDA number identifies the grant as a major federal program as defined by Title 2 Part 200 (Uniform Guidance).

NOTE 3: AWARD BALANCE

On the Housing Choice Voucher programs, the Authority receives annual funds based on an annual estimate of need. Any Housing Assistance funds received in excess of current year payments is restricted for payment of future Housing Assistance payments.

NOTE 4: INDIRECT COST RATE

The Authority has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under Uniform Guidance.

STATEMENT OF CERTIFICATION OF MODERNIZATION COSTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

| | 501-17 | 501-18 | 501-19 | Totals |
|------------------------------|------------|------------|------------|--------------|
| Budget | \$ 467,186 | \$ 812,978 | \$ 844,000 | \$ 2,124,164 |
| Advances: | | | | |
| Cumulative through 3/31/2019 | \$ 130,631 | \$ 49,374 | \$ - | \$ 180,005 |
| Current Year | 318,603 | 682,225 | 306,412 | 1,307,240 |
| Cumulative through 3/31/2020 | 449,234 | 731,599 | 306,412 | 1,487,245 |
| Costs: | | | | |
| Cumulative through 3/31/2019 | 133,132 | 53,633 | - | 186,765 |
| Current Year | 316,102 | 677,966 | 306,412 | 1,300,480 |
| Cumulative through 3/31/2020 | 449,234 | 731,599 | 306,412 | 1,487,245 |
| Excess / (Deficiency) | \$ - | \$ - | \$ - | \$ - |

The distribution of costs by project as shown on the Final Statement of Modernization Costs accompanying the Actual Modernization Cost Certificate submitted to HUD for approval agrees with the Authority's records.

All modernization costs have been paid and all related liabilities have been discharged through payment.

FINANCIAL COMPLIANCE REPORTS FOR FEDERAL FUNDS



Dooley & Vicars Certified Public Accountants, L.L.P.

Daniel J. Dooley, C.P.A.

Michael H. Vicars, C.P.A.

48

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Commissioners Bristol Redevelopment and Housing Authority Bristol, Virginia

Report on Compliance for Each Major Program

We have audited the Bristol Redevelopment and Housing Authority's (the "Authority") compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the *OMB Compliance Supplement* that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Authority's major federal programs for the year ended March 31, 2020. The Authority's major federal programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of law, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authority's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirement referred to above.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of *Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)*. Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Authority's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with each major program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Authority's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Program

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs identified above for the year ended March 31, 2020.

21 S. Sheppard Street • Richmond, VA 23221 Telephone: 804.355.2808 • FAX: 804.359.3897

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE (CONTINUED)

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Bristol Redevelopment and Housing Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Authority's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in that normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit the attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be *material weakness* or *significant deficiencies*. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be *material weaknesses*. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of Internal control over compliance and the results of our testing based on the requirements of the *Uniform Guidance*. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Dooley & Vicars

Certified Public Accountants, L.L.P.

Douby oflen

Richmond, Virginia December 21, 2020



Dooley & Vicars Certified Public Accountants, L.L.P.

Daniel J. Dooley, C.P.A. Michael H. Vicars, C.P.A.

50

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Commissioners Bristol Redevelopment and Housing Authority Bristol, Virginia

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Bristol Redevelopment and Housing Authority, which comprise the statement of net position as of March 31, 2020, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements and have issued out report thereon December 21, 2020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Bristol Redevelopment and Housing Authority's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe that a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Bristol Redevelopment and Housing Authority's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Bristol Redevelopment and Housing Authority's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Authority's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Dooley & Vicars

Certified Public Accountants, L.L.P.

Douby Ven

Richmond, Virginia December 21, 2020

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

No Prior Audit Findings.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Section I -- Summary of Auditor's Results

| Financial Statements | | |
|--|------------|-------------------|
| Type of auditor's report issued: | Unmodified | |
| Internal control over financial reporting: | | |
| Material weakness(es) identified: | yes | <u>x</u> no |
| Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be material weakness(es)? | yes | _x_ none reported |
| Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? | yes | <u>x</u> no |
| Federal Awards | | |
| Internal control over major programs: | | |
| Material weakness(es) identified: | yes | <u>x</u> no |
| Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be material weakness(es)? | yes | _x_ none reported |
| Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: | Unmodified | |
| Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with <i>Title 2, CFR Part 200 (Uniform Guidance)</i> : | yes | <u>x</u> no |

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (CONTINUED)

| Identification of | maior | programs |
|-------------------|-------|----------|
|-------------------|-------|----------|

CFDA Number(s)

14.850
14.872

Low Rent Public Housing
Public Housing Capital Fund

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and B programs:

\$ 750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

x yes ____ no

Section II -- Financial Statement Findings

There were no financial statement findings.

Section III -- Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no federal award findings or questioned costs.

Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary

Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit

Fiscal Year End: 03/31/2020

| Submission type. Addied Single Addi | | 4 8421 | al loat Life. Gara | 172020 | | | | | | |
|--|---------------|---|---|--|---|---------------------------------|-----------------------------------|---------------|---|---------------|
| | Project Total | 1 Business Activities | 14 218 Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants | 2 State/Local | 14.870 Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services | 6.2 Component Unit - Blended | 14.871 Housing Choice Vouchers | Sublotal | ELIM | Total |
| 111 Cash - Urrestricted | \$1,231,511 | \$421,424 | 1 | \$2,500 | | \$223,269 | \$66,564 | \$1,945,268 | | \$1,945,268 |
| 112 Cash - Restricted - Modernization and Development | | | 1 | ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, | | | | | | |
| 113 Cash - Other Restricted | \$32,783 | | | \$205,483 | | \$172,363 | \$29,727 | \$440,356 | | \$440.356 |
| 114 Cash - Tenani Security Deposits | \$55,624 | \$932 | | | | \$28,271 | | \$84,827 | | \$84,827 |
| 115 Cash - Restricted for Payment of Current Liabilities | | | | *************************************** | | | \$0 | \$0 | | \$0 |
| 100 Total Cash | \$1,319,918 | \$422,356 | \$0 | \$207,963 | \$0 | \$423,903 | \$96,291 | \$2,470,451 | \$0 | \$2,470,451 |
| 121 Accounts Receivable - PHA Projects | | | | | | | | | | |
| 122 Accounts Receivable - HUD Other Projects | \$0 | i i | | | \$4,792 | | | \$4,792 | | \$4,792 |
| 124 Accounts Receivable - Other Government | | | \$3,456 | namman i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i | | | | \$3,455 | | \$3,455 |
| 125 Accounts Receivable - Miscelaneous | \$8,612 | \$17,083 | | | | \$2,788 | | \$28,483 | -\$15,833 | \$12,650 |
| 126 Accounts Receivable - Tenants | \$10,119 | | | | | \$935 | | \$11,054 | *************************************** | \$11,054 |
| 126.1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Tenants | -\$304 | | | | | \$0 | | -\$304 | <u> </u> | -\$304 |
| 126.2 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | 50 | \$0 | | \$0 | | \$0 |
| 127 Notes, Loans, & Morigages Receivable - Current | - | | | | 1 | | | | | |
| 128 Fraud Recovery | 1 | | | | | | \$8,015 | \$8,015 | | \$8,015 |
| 128.1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud | - | | | | | | -\$8,015 | -\$8,015 | | -\$8,015 |
| 129 Accrued Interest Receivable | | | | | | | | | | |
| 120 Total Receivables, Net of Allowances for Doubtful Accounts | \$18,427 | \$17,083 | \$3,455 | \$0 | \$4,792 | \$3,723 | 50 | \$47,480 | -\$15,833 | \$31,647 |
| 131 Investments - Unrestricted | \$193,523 | | - | | | | | \$193,523 | | \$193,523 |
| 132 Investments - Restricted | | | | | | | \$0 | \$0 | | \$0 |
| 135 Investments - Restricted for Payment of Current Liability | | | | | | | \$0 | \$0 | | \$0 |
| 142 Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets | \$48,808 | | | | | \$7,815 | | \$56,623 | | \$56,623 |
| 143 Inventories | | | 1 | | | | | | | |
| 143.1 Allowance for Obsolete Inventories | - | | | | 1 | | | | | |
| 144 Inter Program Due From | \$9,039 | \$2,500 | 1 | | 1 | | \$123 | \$11,662 | -\$11,662 | \$0 |
| 145 Assets Held for Sale | 1 | | | | - | | | | | |
| 150 Total Current Assets | \$1,589,715 | \$441,939 | \$3,455 | \$207,983 | \$4,792 | \$435,441 | \$96,414 | \$2,779,739 | -\$27,495 | \$2,752.244 |
| 161 Land | \$543,767 | \$218,707 | 1 | | l | \$200,099 | | \$962,573 | | \$962,573 |
| 162 Buildings | \$24,577,937 | \$276,525 | | | | \$12,492,453 | | \$37,346,915 | | \$37,346,915 |
| 163 Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Dwellings | \$429,444 | | | | | \$157,174 | | \$586,618 | | \$586,618 |
| 164 Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration | \$229,868 | *************************************** | | | | | | \$229,868 | | \$229,868 |
| 185 Leasehold Improvements | | | | | | | | | | |
| 166 Accumutated Depreciation | -\$24,071,336 | -\$105,233 | 1 | | | -\$1,761,203 | | -\$25.937,772 | | -\$25,937,772 |
| 167 Construction in Progress | \$831,288 | | 1 | | i | | | \$831,288 | | \$831,288 |
| 168 Infrastructure | | | 1 | | | \$138,965 | | \$138,965 | | \$138,965 |
| 160 Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation | \$2,540,968 | \$389,999 | 50 | 50 | \$0 | \$11,227,488 | 50 | \$14,158,455 | \$0 | \$14,158,455 |
| 171 Notes, Loans and Mortgages Receivable - Non-Current | 50 | \$1,988,372 | - | | - | | | \$1,988,372 | -\$1,988,372 | \$0 |

Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary

Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit

Fiscal Year End: 03/31/2020

| | Project Total | 1 Business Activities | 14.218 Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants | 2 State/Local | 14.870 Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services | 6.2 Component Unit - Blended | 14.871 Housing Choice Vouchers | Subtotal | ELIM | Total |
|---|---------------|--------------------------|---|----------------------------|---|---------------------------------|-----------------------------------|--------------|--------------|--------------|
| 172 Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Non Current - Past Due | 50 | 1 | | | 100000000000000000000000000000000000000 | | | \$0 | | \$0 |
| 173 Grants Receivable - Non Current | 1 | 1 | | | 1 | | | | | 1 |
| 174 Other Assets | \$0 | İ . | | | | \$84.546 | | \$84,546 | | \$84,546 |
| 176 Investments in Joint Ventures | 50 | \$870,961 | | | 1 | | | \$870,961 | -\$870,961 | \$0 |
| 180 Total Non-Current Assets | \$2,540,968 | \$3,249,332 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$11,312,034 | \$0 | \$17,102,334 | -\$2,859,333 | \$14,243,001 |
| 200 Deferred Outflow of Resources | \$138,613 | 50 | \$0 | \$0 | 50 | \$0 | | \$138,613 | 50 | \$138,613 |
| 290 Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources | \$4,269,296 | \$3,691,271 | \$3,455 | \$207,983 | \$4,792 | \$11,747,475 | \$96,414 | \$20,020,686 | -\$2,886,828 | \$17,133,858 |
| 311 Bank Overdraft | - | | | | - | | | | | |
| 312 Accounts Payable <= 90 Days | \$17,414 | \$97 | | \$6,082 | | | \$3,060 | \$26,643 | | \$26,643 |
| 313 Accounts Payable >90 Days Past Due | | | | | | | | | Ī | |
| 321 Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable | \$4,298 | 1 | | | | | | \$4,298 | | \$4,298 |
| 322 Accrued Compensated Absences - Current Porton | \$43,714 | \$1,563 | | | | | \$3,888 | \$49,165 | | \$49,165 |
| 324 Accrued Contingency Liability | | 1 | | | | | | | | |
| 325 Accrued interest Payable | | | | | | \$1,054 | | \$1,054 | | \$1,054 |
| 331 Accounts Payable - HUD PHA Programs | 50 | | | | 1 | | | 50 | | \$0 |
| 332 Account Payable - PHA Projects | | | 1 | | 1 | b | | | | 1 |
| 333 Accounts Payable - Other Government | \$37,731 | - | | | | | | \$37,731 | | \$37,731 |
| 341 Tenent Security Deposits | \$55,624 | \$932 | | | 1 | \$28,271 | | \$84,827 | | \$84,827 |
| 342 Uneamed Revenue | \$6,039 | \$232 | | | | \$2,463 | \$449 | \$9,183 | | \$9,183 |
| 343 Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Capital Projects/Morlgage Revenue | \$0 | İ | | | 1 | \$30,726 | | \$30,726 | | \$30,726 |
| 344 Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Operating Borrowings | | | | | 1 | | | | | |
| 345 Other Current Liabilities | \$32,783 | 1 | 1 | | | \$1,617 | | \$34,400 | <u> </u> | \$34,400 |
| 346 Accrued Liabilities - Other | \$20,150 | \$402 | | territoria de la companya | | \$323 | \$456 | \$21,331 | | \$21,331 |
| 347 Inter Program - Due To | \$123 | | \$3,455 | \$3,292 | \$4,792 | | | \$11,662 | -\$11,662 | \$0 |
| 348 Loan Liability - Current | \$0 | | 1 | | | | | \$0 | | \$0 |
| 310 Total Current Liabilities | \$217,876 | \$3,226 | \$3,455 | \$9,374 | \$4,792 | \$64,454 | \$7,843 | \$311,020 | -\$11,662 | \$299,358 |
| 351 Long-term Debt. Net of Current - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue | \$0 | | | | | \$1,126,655 | | \$1,126,655 | | \$1,126,655 |
| 352 Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Operating Borrowings | | | | zi Santanas semuano usv | | | | | | 1 |
| 353 Non-current Liabilities - Other | | | | | | \$2,103,205 | | \$2,103,205 | -\$2,004,205 | \$99,000 |
| 354 Accrued Compensated Absences - Non Current | \$87,462 | \$3,127 | | | 1 | | \$7,760 | \$95,369 | | \$98,369 |
| 355 Loan Liability - Non Current | \$0 | | | | | | | \$0 | | \$0 |
| 356 FASB 5 Lisbities | | | | | | | | | | |
| 357 Accrued Pension and OPEB Liabilities | \$403,227 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$403,227 | | \$403,227 |
| 350 Total Non-Current Liabilities | \$490,689 | \$3,127 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$3,229,860 | \$7,780 | \$3,731,456 | -\$2,004,205 | \$1,727,251 |
| 300 Total Liabilities | \$708,565 | \$6,353 | \$3,456 | \$9,374 | \$4,792 | 53,294,314 | \$15,623 | \$4,042,476 | -\$2,015,867 | \$2,026,609 |

Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary

Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit

Fiscal Year End: 03/31/2020

| | Project Total | 1 Business Activities | 14.218 Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants | 2 State/Local | 14.870 Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services | 6.2 Component Unit - Blended | 14.871 Housing Choice Vouchers | Subtotal | ELIM | Total |
|---|---------------|--------------------------|---|---------------|---|---------------------------------|-----------------------------------|--------------|--------------|--------------|
| 400 Deferred inflow of Resources | \$126,579 | | | | | | | \$126,579 | \$0 | \$126,579 |
| 508.4 Net Investment in Capital Assets | \$2,540,968 | \$389,999 | | | | \$8,618,313 | | \$11,549,280 | | \$11,549,280 |
| 511.4 Restricted Net Position | \$55,624 | \$932 | | \$195,509 | | \$200,634 | \$29,727 | \$482,426 | | \$482,426 |
| 512.4 Unrestricted Net Position | \$837,560 | \$3,293,987 | \$0 | \$3,100 | \$0 | -\$365,786 | \$51,064 | \$3,819,925 | -\$870,961 | \$2,948,964 |
| 513 Total Equity - Net Assets / Position | \$3,434,152 | \$3,684,918 | \$0 | \$198,609 | \$0 | \$8,453,161 | \$80,791 | \$15,851,631 | -\$870,961 | \$14,980,670 |
| 600 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Equity - Net | \$4,269,296 | \$3,691,271 | \$3,455 | \$207,983 | \$4,792 | \$11,747,475 | \$96,414 | \$20,020,686 | -\$2,886,828 | \$17,133,858 |

Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary
Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit Fiscal Year End: 03/31/2020

| Submission type. Addited/Single Addit | A STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR | FIR | cal Teal Elic. Coro | 172020 | | | | | | |
|---|--|--------------------------|---|---|--|---|-----------------------------------|-------------|------------|-------------|
| | Project Total | 1 Business Activities | 14.218 Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants | 2 State/Local | 14.870 Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services | 6.2 Component Unit - Blended | 14.871 Housing Choice Vouchers | Subtotal | ELIM | Total |
| 70300 Net Tenant Rental Revenue | \$772,486 | \$15,150 | | | - | \$432,273 | | \$1,219,909 | -\$82,670 | \$1,137,239 |
| 70400 Tenant Revenue - Other | \$148,586 | | | | | \$10,400 | | \$158,986 | | \$158,986 |
| 70500 Total Tenant Revenue | \$921,072 | \$15,150 | 50 | \$0 | \$0 | \$442,673 | \$0 | \$1,378,895 | -\$82,670 | \$1,296,225 |
| | | 1 | | *************************************** | | | | | | |
| 70600 HUD PHA Operating Grants | \$1,942,094 | | | | \$50,577 | | \$1,266,988 | \$3,259,659 | | \$3,259,659 |
| 70610 Capital Grants | \$772,605 | | | | | <u> </u> | | \$772,605 | | \$772,605 |
| 70710 Management Fee | 1 | | | | | | | | | |
| 70720 Asset Management Fee | | | | | İ | | | | | |
| 70730 Book Keeping Fee | | | 1 | | | | | · | | i |
| 70740 Front Line Service Fee | | | | | | *************************************** | | | | ī |
| 70750 Other Fees | | | | | | | | | | · · |
| 70700 Total Fee Revenue | | | | | - | | | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 |
| | E | | | *************************************** | 1 | | | | | |
| 70800 Other Government Grants | | | \$3,455 | \$75,856 | | | 1 | \$79,311 | | \$79,311 |
| 71100 Investment Income - Unrestricted | \$3,964 | | | | | \$2,024 | \$0 | \$5,988 | | \$5,988 |
| 71200 Mortgage Interest Income | | | | | | | | | | |
| 71300 Proceeds from Disposition of Assets Heid for Sale | 1 | | | | | | | | | Ī |
| 71310 Cost of Sale of Assets | | | | | | | | | | |
| 71400 Fraud Recovery | | | | | | | \$7,769 | \$7,769 | | \$7,769 |
| 71500 Other Revenue | 530,384 | \$78,825 | | | | | \$7,895 | \$117,104 | -\$84,557 | \$32,547 |
| 71600 Gain or Loss on Sale of Capital Assets | | | | | | | | | 1 | |
| 72000 Investment Income - Restricted | | | | | | | 30 | \$0 | | \$0 |
| 70000 Total Revenue | \$3,670,119 | \$93,975 | \$3,455 | \$75,856 | \$50,577 | \$444,697 | \$1,282,652 | \$5,621,331 | -\$167,227 | \$5,454,104 |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| 91100 Administrative Salaries | \$512,882 | \$44,540 | | | | \$10,979 | \$71,027 | \$639,425 | -\$10,979 | \$628,449 |
| 91200 Audting Fees | \$9,559 | \$438 | | | | | \$1,994 | \$11,991 | | \$11,991 |
| 91300 Management Fee | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | 50 | | 50 |
| 91310 Book-keeping Fee | | | | | | | | | | |
| 91400 Advertising and Marketing | \$5,535 | | | | | | | \$5,535 | | \$5,535 |
| 91500 Employee Benefit contributions - Administrative | \$129,703 | \$8,004 | | | | \$3,426 | \$17,284 | \$158,417 | -\$3,426 | \$154,991 |
| 91600 Office Expenses | \$162,326 | \$5,988 | | \$6,606 | | \$7,563 | \$17,209 | \$199,682 | | \$199,682 |
| 91700 Legal Expense | \$5,039 | \$6,229 | 1 | \$105 | <u> </u> | \$94 | | \$11,467 | | \$11,467 |
| 91800 Travel | \$19,704 | | | | | | | \$19,704 | | \$19,704 |
| 91810 Allocated Overhead | -\$56,251 | \$19,838 | | | 1 | | \$36,413 | 50 | | \$0 |
| 91900 Other | \$316,484 | \$2,197 | | \$163 | | \$37,217 | \$449 | \$356,510 | -\$37,209 | \$319,301 |
| 91000 Total Operating - Administrative | \$1,104,981 | \$87,234 | \$0 | \$6,874 | \$0 | \$59,269 | \$144,376 | \$1,402,734 | -\$51,614 | \$1,351,120 |
| 92000 Asset Management Fee | | | | | | | | | | |
| 92100 Tenant Services - Salaries | \$87,969 | | | | \$38,658 | | | \$126,627 | | \$126,627 |
| 92200 Relocation Costs | \$16,310 | | | | | | | \$16,310 | | \$16,310 |
| 92300 Employee Benefit Contributions - Tenant Services | \$28,545 | Samuel Society | | | \$11,919 | | | 540,464 | | \$40,464 |

Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit Fiscal Year End: 03/31/2020

| Submission Type: Audited/Single Audi | \$7,726 | T | i Year End: U3 | T | Ī | I | Ī | \$7,726 | | \$7,726 |
|--|-----------|----------|----------------|----------|---|----------|---------|--------------|-----------|-----------|
| 92500 Total Tenant Services | \$140,550 | \$0 | 50 | 50 | \$50,577 | \$0 | \$0 | \$191,127 | \$0 | \$191,127 |
| | | | | | | | | 7131,121 | | 1 |
| 93100 Water | \$34,029 | \$473 | | | | \$14,055 | | \$48,557 | | \$48,557 |
| 93200 Electricity | \$208.675 | \$3,834 | | · | | \$38,082 | | \$250,591 | | \$250,591 |
| 93300 Gas | \$62,813 | \$277 | | - | | | | \$63,090 | | \$63,090 |
| 93400 Fuel | | - | | | | | | | | 1 |
| 93500 Labor | | | | 1 | | | | | | 1 |
| 93600 Sewer | \$38,016 | \$527 | | | | \$15,110 | | \$53.653 | | \$53,653 |
| 93700 Employee Benefit Contributions - Utilities | | | | | | | | | | 1 |
| 93800 Other Utilities Expense | **** | | | - | | I | | | | 1 |
| 93000 Total Utilities | \$343,533 | \$5,111 | \$0 | S0 | \$0 | \$67,247 | 50 | \$415,891 | 50 | \$415,891 |
| | | | | | | | | 3710,031 | | \$410,001 |
| 94100 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor | \$362,954 | \$14,463 | | | | \$14,240 | | \$391,657 | -\$14,240 | \$377,417 |
| 94200 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Materials and Other | \$211,297 | \$186 | p | | | \$16,072 | | \$227,555 | | \$227,555 |
| 94300 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts | \$196,296 | \$4,661 | | | | \$28,724 | | \$229,681 | | \$229,681 |
| 94500 Employee Benefit Contributions - Ordinary Maintenance | \$79,288 | \$6,766 | | | | \$6,683 | | \$92,737 | -\$6,683 | \$86,054 |
| 94000 Total Maintenance | \$849,835 | \$26,076 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$65,719 | \$0 | \$941,630 | -\$20,923 | \$920,707 |
| | | | | | | | | | 1 | |
| 95100 Protective Services - Labor | | | | Ī. | | | | | | |
| 95200 Protective Services - Other Contract Costs | | | | | | 1 | | | | |
| 95300 Protective Services - Other | \$9,550 | | | | | | | \$9,550 | | \$9,550 |
| 95500 Employee Benefit Contributions - Protective Services | | | | | | | | | | |
| 95000 Total Protective Services | \$9,560 | \$0 | \$0 | 50 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$9,550 | \$0 | \$9,550 |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| 96110 Property Insurance | 542,921 | \$840 | | | | \$25,957 | | \$69,718 | I . | \$69,718 |
| 96120 Liability Insurance | \$11,548 | \$664 | | | | | | \$12,212 | | \$12,212 |
| 95130 Workmen's Compensation | \$20,405 | \$812 | | | *************************************** | | \$1,492 | \$22,709 | | \$22,709 |
| 96140 All Other Insurance | \$10,146 | | | | | | 5964 | 511,110 | | \$11,110 |
| 96100 Total insurance Premiums | \$85,020 | \$2,316 | \$0 | \$0 | 50 | \$25,957 | \$2,456 | \$115,749 | \$0 | \$115,749 |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| 96200 Other General Expenses | \$150,740 | \$3,527 | | \$10,747 | | \$40,191 | \$1,623 | \$206,828 | -\$82,670 | \$124,158 |
| 96210 Compensated Absences | \$48,563 | \$1,013 | | | | | \$720 | \$50,296 | | \$50,296 |
| 96300 Payments in Lieu of Taxes | \$37,519 | | | | | | | \$37,519 | | \$37,519 |
| 96400 Bad debt - Tenant Rents | \$50,504 | | | | | \$10,624 | | \$61,128 | | \$61,128 |
| 96500 Bad debt - Mortgages | | | | | | | | ĺ | | |
| 96600 Bad debt - Other | | | | | | | | | | |
| 96800 Severance Expense | | | | | | | | | | |
| 96000 Total Other General Expenses | \$287,326 | \$4,540 | \$0 | \$10,747 | \$0 | \$50,815 | \$2,343 | \$355,771 | -\$82,670 | \$273,101 |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| 96710 Interest of Mortgage (or Bonds) Payable | | | | | | | | | | |
| 96720 Interest on Notes Payable (Short and Long Term) | \$0 | | | | | \$33,935 | | \$33,935 | -\$5,000 | \$28,935 |
| 96730 Amortization of Bond Issue Costs | | | | | | | | | | |
| 96700 Total Interest Expense and Amortization Cost | \$0 | \$0 | 50 | \$0 | 50 | \$33,935 | 50 | \$33,935 | -\$5,000 | \$28,935 |

Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary
Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit
Fiscal Year End: 03/31/2020

| Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit | | Fisca | I Year End: 03 | /31/2020 | | | | | | |
|---|--|--------------|-------------------|-----------------------|-------------------|--|-------------------|-----------------|---------------|--------------------|
| 96900 Total Operating Expenses | \$2,820,795 | \$125,277 | 20 | \$17,621 | \$50,577 | \$302,942 | \$149,175 | \$3,466,387 | -\$160,207 | \$3,306,180 |
| COMP. Company of Company of Company of Company | 5740 774 | | 63.455 | | | | | <u> </u> | | |
| 97000 Excess of Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses | \$849,324 | -\$31,302 | \$3,455 | \$58,235 | \$0 | \$141,755 | \$1,133,477 | \$2,154,944 | -\$7,020 | \$2,147,924 |
| 97100 Extraordinary Maintenance | | | | <u> </u> | | 1 | | | | |
| 97200 Casualty Losses - Non-capitalized | | | | OX EMPLOYEE THE SERVE | | | 1 | | 2 IIIIII- III | |
| 97300 Housing Assistance Payments | | | | | | | \$1,098,431 | \$1,098,431 | | \$1,098,431 |
| 97350 HAP Portability-in | | | | 1 | | | \$7,020 | \$7,020 | -\$7,020 | \$0 |
| 97400 Depreciation Expense | \$322,709 | \$9,336 | | | | 5374,167 | | \$705,212 | | \$706,212 |
| 97500 Fraud Losses | | | | | | | | | | mmmary, sayre unmm |
| 97600 Capital Outlays - Governmental Funds | A VIII THE PLANT OF THE PARTY O | | | | | | | | | |
| 97700 Debt Principal Payment - Governmental Funds | | | | | | | | general reserve | | |
| 97800 Dwelling Units Rent Expense | | | va armire esamada | | Lanceum neumanist | | | | | |
| 90000 Total Expenses | \$3,143,504 | \$134,613 | \$0 | \$17,621 | \$50,577 | \$677,109 | \$1,254,626 | \$5,278,050 | -\$167,227 | \$5,110,823 |
| 10010 Operating Transfer in | \$853,605 | - | | | | - | | \$853,605 | -\$853,605 | S0 |
| 10020 Operating transfer Out | -\$853,605 | | | | | 1 | (1200/100 Landon) | -\$853,605 | \$853,605 | \$0 |
| 10030 Operating Transfers fromto Primary Government | \$0 | 1 | | <u> </u> | | 4 | | 50 | 2000,000 | \$0 |
| 10040 Operating Transfers from/to Component Unit | 1 | | | İ | | - | - | | | |
| 10050 Proceeds from Notes, Loans and Bonds | | | | | | | | - | | |
| 10060 Proceeds from Property Sales | + | 1 | | | | | | | - | |
| 10070 Extraordinary Items, Net Gain/Loss | | • | | | | | | - | | |
| 10080 Special Items (Net Gain/Loss) | | 1 | | | | | | | | 1 |
| 10091 Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer In | \$80,000 | | | <u> </u> | | | | \$80,000 | -\$80,000 | \$0 |
| 10092 Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer Out | -\$80,000 | † | | | | | | -\$80,000 | \$80,000 | 50 |
| 10093 Transfers between Program and Project - In | \$3,455 | | | | | - | | \$3,456 | -\$3,456 | \$0 |
| 10094 Transfers between Project and Program - Out | | † | -\$3,456 | 1 | | | | -\$3,455 | \$3,455 | 50 |
| 10100 Total Other financing Sources (Uses) | \$3,455 | \$0 | -\$3,455 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 |
| 10000 Excess (Deficiency) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses | \$530,070 | -\$40,638 | \$0 | \$58,235 | SO SO | -5232,412 | \$28,026 | \$343,281 | 50 | \$343,281 |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11020 Required Annual Debt Principal Payments | 50 | \$0 | 50 | \$0 | \$0 | \$30,726 | \$0 | \$30,726 | | \$30,726 |
| 11030 Beginning Equity | 52,904,082 | \$3,725,556 | \$0 | \$140,374 | \$0 | \$8,420,573 | \$52,765 | \$15,243,350 | -\$870,961 | \$14,372,389 |
| 11040 Prior Period Adjustments, Equity Transfers and Correction of Errors | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | 50 | \$265,000 | 50 | \$265,000 | | \$265,000 |
| 11050 Changes in Compensated Absence Balance | | | | ļ | | | | <u> </u> | | 1 |
| 11060 Changes in Contingent Liability Balance | | | | | | | | | | |
| 11070 Changes in Unrecognized Pension Transition Liability | - | | | ļ | | | | | | ļ |
| 11080 Changes in Special Term/Severance Benefits Liability | | | | | | - | | 1 | | - |
| 11090 Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Dwelling Rents | | | | 1 | | | <u> </u> | <u> </u> | | ļ |
| 11100 Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other | - | | | - | | | | | | |
| 11170 Administrative Fee Equity | - | | | | | | \$51,064 | \$51,064 | | \$51,064 |
| 11180 Housing Assistance Payments Equity | | | | | | | \$29,727 | \$29,727 | | \$29,727 |
| 11190 Unit Months Available | 4032 | 24 | | | | 312 | 3636 | 8004 | | 8004 |
| 11210 Number of Unit Months Leased | 3956 | 24 | | | | 311 | 3252 | 7543 | | 7543 |

Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary

Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit

Fiscal Year End: 03/31/2020

| Submission Type. Addited Single | Addit | Tiscar Fear Ella, Corolizazo | | | |
|--|-------------|------------------------------|---|-------------|-------------|
| 11270 Excess Cash | \$1,100,553 | | | \$1,100,553 | \$1,100,553 |
| 11610 Land Purchases | \$0 | | | \$0 | \$0 |
| 11620 Building Purchases | \$772,605 | | | \$772,605 | \$772,605 |
| 11630 Furniture & Equipment - Dwelling Purchases | \$0 | | | \$0 | \$0 |
| 11640 Furniture & Equipment - Administrative Purchases | \$11,089 | | | \$11,089 | \$11,089 |
| 11650 Leasehold Improvements Purchases | \$0 | | i | 50 | \$0 |
| 11660 Infrastructure Purchases | \$0 | | | \$0 | \$0 |
| 13510 CFFP Debt Service Payments | \$0 | | | 50 | \$0 |
| 13901 Replacement Housing Factor Funds | 50 | | | \$0 | 50 |



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION RELATED TO PENSIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Schedule of changes in BRHA's Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios

| | 2019 | 2018 | 2017 | 2016 | 2015 |
|---|-------------------|------------------|--------------------|-----------------|-----------------|
| Total pension liability | 6 00 755 | e 00.747 | £ 00.005 | 0.04.454 | £ 07.050 |
| Service cost Interest | \$ 92,755 | \$ 92,747 | \$ 99,935 | \$ 94,454 | \$ 97,953 |
| Change of assumptions | 231,409 88,625 | 241,470 | 230,364 | 222,924 | 212,485 |
| Difference between expected and actual experience | (44,246) | (251,486) | (16,756) 67,246 | /9 OC7\ | 29,330 |
| Contributions - Employer | (44,240) | (231,400) | 07,240 | (8,967) | 29,330 |
| Contributions - Employee | | | | | |
| Net investment income | | | | | |
| Benefit payments, including refunds of | | | | | |
| employee contributions | (220,507) | (232,392) | (211,879) | (192,370) | (188,917) |
| Administrative expense | | | | *********** | |
| Other | ** | - | | | |
| Net change in total pension liability | 148,036 | (149,661) | 168,910 | 116,041 | 150,851 |
| Total pension liability - beginning | 3,416,102 | 3,565,763 | 3,396,853 | 3,280,812 | 3,129,961 |
| Total pension liability - ending (a) | \$3,564,138 | \$3,416,102 | \$3,565,763 | \$3,396,853 | \$3,280,812 |
| | | | | *5 | |
| | | | | | |
| Plan fiduciary net position | | | | | |
| Contributions - employer | \$ 73,840 | \$ 91,215 | \$ 88,991 | \$ 100,135 | \$ 99,973 |
| Contributions - employee | 49,921 | 47,788 | 48,026 | 43,061 | 43,189 |
| Net investment income | 206,337 | 221,857 | 331,651 | 47,396 | 122,319 |
| Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions | /220 E07\ | (222 202) | (244 870) | (400 070) | (400.047) |
| Administrative expense | (220,507) | 20 10 10 | (211,879) | (192,370) | (188,917) |
| Other | (2,092) (130) | (1,945) (195) | (1,942) (295) | (1,718) (20) | (1,694) (26) |
| Net change in plan fiduciary net position | 107,369 | 126.328 | 254,552 | (3,516) | 74,844 |
| Plan fiduciary net position - beginning | 3,144,831 | 3,018,503 | 2,763,951 | 2,767,467 | 2,692,623 |
| Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) | \$3,252,200 | \$3,144,831 | \$3,018,503 | \$2,763,951 | \$2,767,467 |
| | | (h) | | | |
| BRHA's net pension liability (asset) - ending (a)-(b) | \$ 311,938 | \$ 271,271 | \$ 547,260 | S 632,902 | \$ 513,345 |
| Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total Pension llability | 91% | 92% | 85% | 81% | 84% |
| Covered employee payroll | \$1,095,341 | \$1,065,018 | \$ 999,986 | \$ 972,562 | \$ 874,335 |
| BRHA's net pension liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll | 28% | 25% | 55% | 65% | 59% |

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION RELATED TO PENSIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (CONTINUED)

Schedule of Employer Pension Contributions to the VRS for the Years Ended June 30:

| | | Contributions in Relation to | | Employers | Contributions as a % of |
|------|---|---|----------------------------------|--------------------------------|--------------------------------|
| Date | Contractually Required Contribution | Contractually Required Contribution | Contribution Deficiency (Excess) | Covered Employee Payroll | Covered Employee Payroll |
| 2019 | \$80,617 | \$80,617 | \$0 | \$1,095,341 | 7.36% |
| 2018 | \$99,793 | \$91,215 | \$8,578 | \$1,065,018 | 8.56% |
| 2017 | \$93,699 | \$88,991 | \$4,708 | \$999,986 | 8.90% |
| 2016 | \$111,553 | \$100,135 | \$11,418 | \$972,562 | 10.30% |
| 2015 | \$100,286 | \$99,973 | \$313 | \$874,335 | 11.43% |
| 2014 | \$107,548 | \$104,038 | \$3,510 | \$856,959 | 12.14% |

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be included as they become available from the VRS.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION RELATED TO OPEB FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Schedule of Employer's Share of Net OPEB Liability Group Life Insurance Program for the Measurement Dates Ended June 30:

| | 2019 | 2018 | 2017 |
|---|-------------|-------------|-----------|
| Employer's Proportion of the Net GLI OPEB Liability (Asset) | 0.00561% | 0.00543% | 0.00533% |
| Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net GLI OPEB Liability (Asset) | \$91,289 | \$82,000 | \$80,000 |
| Employer's Covered Payroll | \$1,100,633 | \$1,031,566 | \$983,819 |
| Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net GLI OPEB Liability (Asset) as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll | 8.29% | 7.95% | 8.13% |
| Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total GLI OPEB Liability | 52.00% | 51.22% | 48.86% |

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Since 2019 is the third year for this presentation, only three years of data is available. However, additional years will be included as they become available.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION RELATED TO OPEB FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (CONTINUED)

Schedule of Employer OPEB Contributions to the VRS for the Years Ended June 30:

| Date | Contractually Required Contribution | Contributions in Relation to Contractually Required Contribution | Contribution Deficiency (Excess) | Employers Covered Employee Payroll | Contributions as a % of Covered Employee Payroll |
|------|---|--|----------------------------------|---|--|
| 2019 | \$5,723 | \$5,723 | \$0 | \$1,100,633 | 0.52% |
| 2018 | \$5,364 | \$5,364 | \$0 | \$1,031,566 | 0.52% |
| 2017 | \$5,116 | \$5,116 | \$0 | \$983,819 | 0.52% |
| 2016 | \$4,921 | \$4,456 | \$465 | \$928,435 | 0.53% |
| 2015 | \$4,654 | \$4,215 | \$439 | \$878,126 | 0.53% |
| 2014 | \$4,399 | \$3,984 | \$415 | \$830,058 | 0.53% |
| 2013 | \$4,342 | \$3,932 | \$410 | \$819,175 | 0.53% |
| 2012 | \$3,834 | \$2,440 | \$1,394 | \$871,270 | 0.44% |
| 2011 | \$3,692 | \$2,349 | \$1,343 | \$839,031 | 0.44% |
| 2010 | \$2,218 | \$1,663 | \$555 | \$615,986 | 0.36% |

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION RELATED TO PENSIONS AND OPEB FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Note 1: Changes of Benefit Terms

There have been no material changes to the System provisions since the prior actuarial valuation.

Note 2: Changes of Assumptions

The following changes in actuarial assumptions were made effective June 30, 2018 based on the most recent experience study of the System for the four-year period ending June 30, 2016, except the change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:

Largest 10 - Non-Hazardous Duty:

Updated mortality table RP-2014 projected to 2020
Lowered retirement rates at older ages and changed final retirement from 70 to 75
Adjusted withdrawal rates to better fit experience at each year age and service years
Lowered disability rates
Increased line of duty disability rate from 14% to 20%
Decrease discount rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

All Others - Non-Hazardous Duty:

Updated mortality table RP-2014 projected to 2020
Lowered retirement rates at older ages and changed final retirement from 70 to 75
Adjusted withdrawal rates to better fit experience at each year age and service years
Lowered disability rates
Increased line of duty disability rate from 14% to 15%
Decrease discount rate from 7.00% to 6.75%